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PLATTING OF THE VILLAGE.

In the fall of 1824, Mr. Moore, who had purchased the land where
the town now stands, employed a surveyor and laid out the village, which
was named in his honor. The plat was as follows: -
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INCORPORATION OF MOORESVILLE.

The growth of the village during the twenties was so rapid that in
1831 the population was over 200, and every business industry was full
of promise. In March, 1881, the question of incorporating the town
was submitted to the citizens, and carried by a majority of twenty-four
votes, the total vote being thirty-two. At the same time, a large addition
of 140 lots was laid out and offered for sale, with many buyers. The
town was accordingly incorporated, and the following men were the first
Trustees: Samuel Moore, Asa Bales, W. C. Cline, J. S. Kelley and
James Bradshaw. After about two years, the municipal government died
out, but was again revived in 1838, since which time, if reports are cor-
rect, it has been maintained. A jail was built in the thirties, to accom-
modate the disorderly. The town ordinances were published in the
Chronicle, edited at Mooresville in 1846 and until about 1851 by T. J.
Worth. This paper was an important factor at Mooresville, but was not
supported to satisfy the owner, who removed it to the county seat. The

surrounding country, however, could not afford to do much ‘better, as it
was taken in all families.

LATER INDUSTRIAL PURSUITS.

Sheets & Brothers engaged in the mercantile business soon after 1850.
W. H. P. Woodward began in 1857, his partner being Mr. Fogleman.
Later came Thornburg & Son, Robert R. Scott, A. B. Gregory, Calvin
Moore, who owned the first drug store ; Woodward & Hinson, grocers ;
Joseph Pool, drugs ; G. W. Ross, same; Frank Hadley, same ; Harvey,
same ; Clinton Hadley, the present druggist ; Rusie & Richardson, stoves,
about twenty years ago; Michael Rusie, hardware, in the fifties, and
many others. The population of the town in 1850 was about 500.
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PRESENT BUSINESS ENTERPRISES.

Dry goods, J. H. Thompson & Son, Fred Sheets & Bro., W. H. P.
Woodward, Parker & Co.; hardware, T. A. Richardson ; grocers, John
A. Newman, W. H. P. Woodward, Leathers Bros., Peter Farmer ; drugs,
G. W. Bass, C. C. Hadley, S. M. Hadley; millinery, Carrie Rusie;
restaurants, L. D. Comer ; butchers, T. H. Prather, Chris Egler ; livery,
Hamilton Jackson & Bro., Charles Wellman ; harness, B. F. Jones;
carriages, Leander Shanafelt, W. H. White ; grist mill, Smith & Hiatt ;
saw mill and planing mill, Mathew Comer; tile factory, A. W. Hadley &
Bro.; lumber yard, Eli Sumner ; grain buyers, Smith & Hiatt, Mr. Mars-
ley; creamery, Jordan & Co.; photographer, I. P. Calvert; printing
offices, W. H. Hunt, Larkin Elliott; hotels, Merrick, Wellman, Mec-
Cracken ; barbers, William Woods, Solomon Russell; furniture, J. H.
Rusie ; boots and shoes, O. E. Rooker ; brick, Ayres & Dane, P. Fields,
Cooper, Mr. Dolan ; contractors, Manker & Cooper, Comer & Marine.

THE EARLY AND SUBSEQUENT SCHOOLS.

Tt is said that Grant Stafford taught school near Judge Hiram Mat-
thews’ during the winter of 1821-22. If this is a fact, it was no doubt
the first in the township. The writer has been unable to get at the facts.
It is known that school was taught in that vicinity very early. Barclay
Burris taught about a mile east of Mooresville in 1823, or perhaps 1824.
Sessions were held almost continuously in these two neighborhoods after
these first terms. Log schoolhouses were erected in both neighborhoods
about 1826. A school was started by the Friends a mile or two west of
town about the same time. This school for many years was the best in
the township, not even excepting the one at Mooresville. They were
prominent people, and many of them being in good circumstances -could
afford to have good schools early. Asa Bales, the first resident of Moores-
ville, with whom Samuel Moore boarded while engaged early in his store,
was no doubt the first teacher in the town. He taught in a small log
cabin, and had about ten scholars, including, if reports are correct, sev-
eral of his own. After this the growth of the town was so rapid that
schools were taught there continuously. Horatio N. Teacle was an early
teacher east of town, in the Brayv neighborhood. Willis Conduitt, father
of A. B. Conduitt, of Indianapolis. taught school in the Carter neighbor-
hood during the very cold winter of 1825-26. When the teacher
reached the house on Christmas morning, he found that his large scholars
had barred the door, and he was refused entrance unless he treated. He
accordingly went to town and bought about a gallon of whisky, which he
divided out among his pupils, and was then permitted to resume his duties
in-doors. Some of the boys became too full (fool) for utterance, and were
sent home in disgrace. J. D. Carter was one of the number. He went
home swaggering, happy as a lark, loaded to the muzzle with a ceaseless
fire of talk, but his father quietly took down the big gad and gave the
boy a dressing that he remembers until the present. The remedy was
corrective, as that was the first, last and only boozy experience Mr. Car-
ter ever had.

By the year 1828, the schools of Mooresville had become so excellent
: 7
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that the cilizens organized or established the Mooresville School Society.
The meeting was held at the house of Samuel Moore, and the following
officers of the society were elected: W. C. Conduitt, President; Asa
Bales, Secretary; D. G. Worth, W. C. Conduitt, Alexander Worth,
Joel Dixon and Asa Bales, Trustees. The President of this educational

society was an experienced school teacher himself, and a man of consid- -

erable learning. He taught quite early in town. Late in the twenties, a
brick schoolhouse was built in the village under the direction of the
society. It was a substantial building containing one room, in which
good teachers were employed at comfortable wages. The house cost
about $600, and was constantly used for religious purposes and as a debat-
ing and lecturing room. Two teachers in this house were E. H. Waugh
and R. B. Preston. Late in the forties, it was succeeded by a frame
building containingtwo rooms, which cost $800. This house was used
until the Friends’ Schoolhouse was built in 1861 in the western part of
town, at a cost of $4,500. Much of the fund was raised by donation
from all the citizens who were to be permitted to send their children
there, though the Friends were to have control. In about 1870, the town
became an independent school district, whereupon the schoolhouse was
purchased of the Quakers for $5,000, and the latter very justly refunded
the amount with interest, which had been donated by the other citizens
in 1861. Prof. Stewart was the first teacher in this house, his term being
the winter of 1861-62. He continued to teach for three years, wheu he
was superseded by Joseph Poole. After the independent district was
formed, the first Principal was Harrison Hubbard. He was paid $3.89
per diem. His assistants were Isaac Jones, who received $2.75 per day,
and Emma Clawson, who received $2 per day. Since then the Princi-
pals have been John H. Beason, William C. Hinson, James Hunt, Mary
McNabb, William M. Hadley, A. W. Macy, Stephen Hunt, F. J. Byers,
0. C. Charlton, C. P. Eppert, two years; Elam Harvey, three years.
The assistants, beginning in 1871, have been Louisa Harvey, Eloise Tay-
lor, James Hunt, Mary J. Hunt, Mattie Pray, Mary McNabb, Edna C.
Street, Cecilia Hadley, Elam Harvey, Elvira Harnaday, Emma Thomp-
son, Susan Wilson, Hattie Cox, Mr. and Mrs. Perigo, J. H. Woods,
Anna Hadley, A. W. Macy, Elvira Perce, Rolena Hadley, Jennie Til-
ford and Frank Manker. As high as five teachers have been employed
at one time. A large addition to the schoolhouse is being constructed the
present year, which will cost about $4,000.

SECRET SOCIETIES.

The writer endeavored to get access to the records of the Masonic
Lodge at Mooresville; but as the members he talked with seemed to
care but little whether a sketch of it was written or not, and made no effort
to furnish the necessary facts, they cannot appear in these pages. The
lodge is an old one, extending back, if reports are reliable, into the forties.
Morgan Lodge, No. 211, Odd Fellows, was established in July, 1859,
with the following charter members : W. G. Cook, John H. Rusie, B. B.
Wright, T. N. Peoples, A. T. Manker, Reuben Harris and Richard P.
Johnson. The first officers were W. G. Cook, N. G.; B. B. Wright, V.
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G.; T. N. Peoples, Secretary. In 1881, their fine brick building was
destroyed by fire, and with it all their personal effects. The building has
been rebuilt. The lodge is in excellent financial condition, with property,
including cash, valued at $5,000. In 1866, Mooresville Encampment,

No. 74, was established.

THE BANKING BUSINESS.

The Savings Bank of Mooresville was established in August, 1872,
the first offiters being A. W. Reagan, President; Allen Hadley, Vice
President ; Alexander Worth, Secretary and Cashier. In 1873, the estab-
lishment became known as the Farmers’ Bank, with a cash capital of
$30,000, which was afterward increased to $50,000, but later decreased
to $35,000. The following men were stockholders: Dr. A. W. Reagan,
Joseph Pool, L. M. Hadley, Eli J. Sumner, Allen Hadley, F. Sheets &
Bro., Giles B. Mitchell, J. L. Moffitt, Joel Jessup, Alexander Worth,
Jackson Jessup, Holman Johnson, J. F. Hadley, Joseph N. Taylor,
Aaron Mills, Ira M. Bray, W. B. Thompson and John Sheets. The
Presidents of the bank have been Giles B. Mitchell, Charles Reeve and
H. Satterwhite. The Cashiers have been A. Worth, J. A. Taylor, W. F.
Hadley. The following is the present financial condition of the bank :

RESOURCES. LIABILITIES. .
(Gh R S et o $4,008 47 Capital.. ... ceonnnssissnansmsssnis $35,090 00
Bills Receivable....covaveennesns, 63’,558 33 (5170 1) 11 1< SR 4,525 00
Real Estate.cccce.ecevensoreronnons 14,278 45 Interest ......... 3,337 65
EXPENSE..ureruareceusereniermamnn 1,258 31 Deposit ....eenes 55,969 02
FUTDItUTe. cocesnssrsonvasesnonsoss 2,513 81 Certificate ......... 8,132 79
MR oo oeeinns oneinis s somm s Tomsos 239 86 Unpaid Dividend... 56 00
Indianapolis National Bank.... 20,837 23 o
Winslovwf’& Co A 318 83 Totaliueeinieneneenenerennn$107,020 46

Drafts 747

Motal. . sssrissasssssusmaeassss $107,020 46

RELIGIOUS DEVELOPMENT.

Since the earliest times, the religious sentiment has been stronger in
Brown Township than perhaps any other portion in the county of equal
or less extent. The first settlements were no sooner formed than min-
isters began to appear, and classes began to arm themselves for the good
fight. The organization of all the classes cannot be given, though many
of the names of those prominently connected with religious interests have
been wrested from swift-approaching oblivion. The Methodist class at
Mooresville was really founded by Eliza Moore, wife of Samuel Moore,
not far from the year 1828. Indeed, she was about the only member at
first, but she was soon joined by Eli Tansey and wife, Jesse S. Rooker
and wife, Joseph Hunt and wife, and William C. Cline and wife. The
Sunday school for this class was established in 1835, by Rev. John Will-
iams. In 1889, the members of this church were the families of the
following persons: Samuel J. Black, James Kelley, Samuel Stevenson, Isaac
Williams, William Herrold, Daniel Cox, Jacob L. Pfoff, Alexander Worth,
Daniel May, William McClelland, William (arlisle, Jonathan Hunt, Jacob
Shanafelt, Joseph L. Cox, David Shanafelt, Daniel Day, Joseph Hiatt,
William M. Black, J. W. Richards, William C. Cline, Eliza Moore, John
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Hardrick, Harris Bray, William A. Blair, Gabriel Coble and J. W,
Thompson. A very large revival had occurred two years before, by which
the class had been multiplied nearly tenfold. The old brick Methodist
Episcopal Church was built in 1839, under the direction of James Kelley
William MecClelland, Daniel Day, W. M. Black and J. W. Richards7
Trustees. The fund was raised by subscription, the following men head-
ing the list: James S. Kelley, $200; Samuel Moore (who was not a
member), $200; Alexander Worth, $125; Joseph Hiats, $50; Daniel
Day, $50; Joseph Moon, $50. The total subscription was $1,713.82;
shrinkage, $196.95; expended upon the church, $1,5616.87. This church
was dedicated in the fall of 1839 by Bishop Simpson. Isaac Crawford
and Thomas S. Rucker were the ministers in charge of the class when the
house was built. This old house was used until the present fine brick
structure was built in 1882, at a cost of about $6,000. The class has
ever been strong and prosperous.

The old Methodist class, about three miles southwest of town, was
organized about 1823. Among the early members were the families of
Benjamin Cuthbert, Jeremiah Johnson, Thomas Gripham, Nathan Nich-
ols, John Cole, Charles Fowler. Mr.: Cuthbert furnished about an acre
of land for the nominal sum of $1, to be used for church purposes. This
class was a branch of the old one, near the residence of Benjamin Thorn-
burgh. It is likely that the latter class was the first Methodist Episcopal
organization in Morgan County. The first sermon was preached at the
house of John Martin, by Rev. Reuben Claypool, in the year 1821. The
marriage of Mr. Claypool to Martha Russell is said to have been the first
in the county. The ceremony was performed before the county was or-
ganized. The class was fully organized in 1821, and meetings were mostly
held that year at the cabin of Mr. Martin, and the following year at that of
William Rooker. Among the first members were John Martin, class leader,
Mary Martin, William Gregory, Thomas Gregory, Daniel Gregory,_Levi
Plummer, Patsey Plummer, George Crutchfield, Anna Crutchfield, Catha-
“rine Crutchfield, Nancy Crutchfield, Thomas Gresham, Sarah Gresham,
Samuel Jones, Jesse Rooker, Candes Rooker, Mother Monical, William
Rooker, Nancy Rooker, Rev. Peter Monical, Hannah Monical, Wesley
Monical, Catharine Monical, Benjamin Thornburg, Susan Thornburg,
Eli Tansey, Edith Tansey, Hiram Tansey, Able Tansey and many others
later. By the year 1825, the class was large and prosperous. In 1826,
Rev. John Strange held a famous revival, which largely increased the
membership of the church. Several of the early ministers were Peter
Monical, Samuel Hamilton, James Armstrong, Allen Wiley and E. R.
Ames. This first church was built late in the twenties, and was the first
in the county. This classis yet in existence, and has five or six branches:
_All of the early Methodist Churches in that vicinity sprang from this.
It was called the White Lick Methodist Church. The Quakers fully
organized their class in 1822, at the house of Asa Bales, where meetings
were held for some time. In a few years the class was about as strong
as that of the Methodists; indeed, these two classes were the strongest
and most important features in the northern part of the county in early
years. Under the supervision of the Quakers, the Sulphur Spring Schooi,
in the western part of Brown Township, became at that time.the largest,

—
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most prosperous and most important school in Morgan County. Their
church was called the White Lick Society of Friends. The Quaker
Church in the eastern part of Monroe Township is a branch of this.
Their first building was erected late in the twenties. Among the leading
members were the Doans, the Hadleys, the Harveys, the Tanseys, the
Baleses, the Bowleses, the Dixons, and many others. Their second
church was built in Mooresville during the last war. The Christians
have a class at Mooresville at present. The class was organized in the
forties, and their church was built soon after 1850. Other classes have
flourished in the township.

JACKSON TOWNSHIP.

THE ENTRY OF LAND.

HE location of Jackson Township, remote from any considerable
water-course, delayed its settlement for a few years. The valley of
Indian Creek, however, was too rich a tract of country to remain long in
its primitive state, and about the middle of the twenties the settlers began
to arrive, but not in considerable numbers until the thirties, at which time
the greater portion of the land was entered by actual residents. The
first man, if accounts are correct, to locate permanently in the township
was John Hamilton. He came to the township in 1825, and the follow-
ing year entered a tract of land where now stands the thriving little vil-
lage of Morgantown. He had a family of five or six children. He was
scarcely in the township before he was joined by Daniel Troxel, Thomas
Teeter, Samuel Teeter, Robert Bowles, John Shrum, William Williams,
Sampson Canatsey and a few others, all ot whom located in the vicinity
of Morgantown on Sections 24 and 25. It cannot be stated with any
certainty that Mr. Hamilton was the first settler. Indeed there are evi-
dences that he was not. The first land entered from the Government in
the township was on Section 1 in July, 1821. by William W. Drew and
Elisha Herndon, but if reports are reliable neither of these men resided
in the township. William Harriman entered a tract on Section 26 in
1824, but it is stated that he did not reside there. He lived in Wash-
ington Township. William Knox came in 1828, locating on Section 25,
and Charles Ross in 1827, on Section 26. Henry Adams bought land
on Section 18 in 1828, and Jesse Daugherty on Section 21 the same year.
Finney Courtney and Jonathan Hostetter entered land on Section 26 in
1826, but no traces of their residence in the township could be found.
They probably soon sold out to actual residents. Thomas Hudiburgh
entered a tract on Section 26 in 1828, and another tract on Section 27
‘the same time. These were about the only land owners who had entered
their farms from the Government in the twenties, but there were other
families in the township who were too poor to purchase land, and then
again, there were other families who had bought their farms second-hand.

The names of such cannot be given.
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out his days; he was a soldier of the war of 1812. Albert Voyles is the
youngest of the four children of his parents. August 11, 1862, he be-
came a soldier of Company H, Seventieth Indiana Volunteers, in which
he served until June, 1865. In October, 1868, he married Susan,
daughter of Joshua and Rhoda Gilpin, and born in this county February
20, 1849, which union was cemented by two children—Mamie D. and
James K. Mr. Voyles is a practical man and a respected citizen.

BROWN TOWNSHIP AND MOORESVILLE.

GEORGE W. BASS is a native of Johnson County, Ind., and was
born June 20, 1842. His parents, Josiah H. and Elizabeth (Robinson)
Bass, natives of Kentucky, had seven children, of which George W. was
the sixth, and with three older brothers. His youth was spent upon the
farm, and his education acquired at Greenwood High School in his na-
tive county. In the summer of 1862, he enrolled at Springfield, Mo.,
in Company I, First Missouri Calvary, and served to the close of the
war. The first year of his service was spent scouting -in Southwestern
Missouri and Northeastern Texas; and he also participated in the battle
of Prairie Grove and the Van Buren (Arkansas) raid. He was at the
siege of Vicksburg as Orderlyto Gren. Herron, and afterward saw service
at the following places in their order: Yazoo, Miss., Baton Rouge,
Carrollton, Morganza Bend, and New Orleans, La. From Brownsville,
Tex., he returned to Baton Rouge, where he had charge of the division
mail for some time, when he was ordered to his regiment, then at Little
Rock, Ark., from which place he was honorably discharged from the serv-
ice. After leaving the army, he clerked awhile in a dry goods house, a
drug store, and finally, in the year 1874, settled down in the drug busi-
ness at New Augusta, Ind., where he remained four years. In 1878, he
removed to Mooresville, where he has since been engaged in the drug
business. On November 8, 1871, he was married at Greenwood, Ind., to
Mary E., daughter of W. A. Woods, Esq. By this marriage he has had
born to him three children—Frank R., Charlie W. and Nellie B. The
mother of these children, died March 80, 1880, and October 27, 1881,/
Mr. Bass was married in Morgan County to Martha T. (Turley) Bray.
Both he and his wife are members of the Methodist Episcopal Church,
and Mr. Bass belongs to the Independent Order of Odd Fellows, and
Knights of Honor, of which latter lodge he is present Financial Re-
porter. He owns a small farm in Johnson County, and his residence in
Mooresville, as also the business property in which he carries a lucrative
drug trade.

JAMES M. BISHOP, a promising young lawyer of Mooresville, was
born in Hamilton County, Ind., May 31, 1850. His parents, Joseph and
Nancy (Chew) Bishop, were natives of Virginia, and of English descent.
They had eight children, our subject being the seventh, with two older
brothers. He grew up in Westfield, and finished his education at the
Mooresville High School. In May, 1873, he began the study of law
with Ford & Blair in Shelbyville, Ind., and in the year following was
admitted to the bar in Indianapolis, and from there came soon afterward
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to Mooresville. As a practitioner, he is successful, and - we bespeak for
him a prominent place in the very front rank of his profession at no dis-
tant day. He is a member of the Methodist Episcopal Church, an active
Republican, a good debater, and a public speaker of much more than
average ability. He made his first political speech in 1876, and has
since taken an effective part in all the election campaigns. The declin-
ing years of his aged mother and father are made comfortable and happy
by the generosity and kind attention of an ever dutiful son.

HARRIS BRAY,a pioneer of Brown Township, Morgan County, Ind.,
a native of Chatham County, N. C., is the sixth child and fourth son of
six sons and eight daughters of William and Peggy (Brooks) Bray, na-
tives of North Carolina, and of English descent, and was born December
24, 1798; came into Morgan County in the year 1822; entered from the
Grovernment a tract of land in the year 1823; settled upon it, and here as
a farmer he has since lived.  Until nearly twenty-one years of age, he
lived with his parents in North Carolina. His education was limited to
that of reading, and something of penmanship was acquired at the sub-
scription schools of his native place. In September, 1819, he was mar-
ried in North Carolina to Rachel Moon, by whom he had born to him.ten
children—Brantley, now in Iowa; Austin,now in Iowa; Nancy, now in
Towa; Eli, now in Kansas; Wesley, now in Iowa; Riley, now in Morgan
County, Ind.; Alfred, now in Kansas; William, died in the army at
Buford, S. C.; Ellen, wife of David Sheets, in Morgan County, Ind.;
and Younger, died at the age of thirty-eight years. The mother of these
children died in April, 1876, at the age of seventy-eight years.  Mr.
Bray joined the Methodist Episcopal Church when about forty-five years
of age, and has since lived the life of a consistent Christian. His de-
ceased wife was a member of the same church many years of her life,
and was noted for her purity of life and Christian conduct. Together,
these two people labored as only pioneers of a new country can appre-
ciate. ~ Their home was for many years the headquarters for all immi-
grants to the “new purchase,” and what they had they gave freely.
They inherited nothing but cheerful hearts and strong arms, and their
worldly goods were acquired by their united industry. Mr. Bray en-
tered from the Government from time to time in Indiana about 240 acres
of land, and has put about 100 acres in cultivation. He owns now a
fine farm, where he lives, of 108 acres, all in cultivation and well im-
proved. He has upon this farm a magnificent quarry of blue sandstone
of much value. About 1831, he erected a still-house on the East Fork of
White Lick, about one mile from where Mooresville now stands, and for
twelve years ran it with a capacity of about thirty gallons per day.
After his conversion, he abandoned the trade in liquor. About the year
1841, he put into operation a grist mill at the confluence of the Bast
Fork and the main White Lick Creeks, and ran it about three years. As
the mill was run mostly to supply meal for his distillery, he parted with
it soon after going out of the liquor business. ~He is a Democrat. He
has been a liberal giver to both church and school.

JARVIS P. CALVERT was born in New York Cily June 17, 1842,
and is the youngest of four children of John T. and Sarah (Reese) Cal-
vert, of Rhode Island and Pennsylvania respectively, and of English ex-
traction. When he was but an infant, his parents removed to Cincin-
nati, Ohio, where his mother died in the year 1844, and his father in less
than ayear afterward. Until about ten years of age, Jarvis P. existed a
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part of the time in Louisville, Ky., and a longer period at Columbus,
Ohio. From the age of ten to twenty-one years, he lived on a farm in
Ohio, and attended the public schools. In the spring of 1863, he came
to Indiana and stopped a few months at Plainfield, and October 26, 1863,
he enrolled at Indianapolis in Company I, Sixty-third Indiana Volun-
teer Infantry. From this command he was transferred to Company H,
One Hundred and Twenty-eighth Indiana Volunteer Infantry in the spring
of 1865, and was finally mustered out of the service April 10, 1866.
While in the Sixty-third Regiment, he saw much hard service, and took
part in some nine or ten regular battles, and any number of hot skir-
mishes. With the One Hundred and Twenty-eighth Regiment, his service
was lighter, having been most of the time on detached duty as clerk
about headquarters. He returned to Plainfield and there studied photog-
raphy, and in February, 1867, opened his art gallery in Mooresville,
where he has since made great progress in his profession. May 19, 1868,
he married Delia Perce, by whom he has had born to him five children—
Archie B., Lennetta May (deceased), Gertrude (deceased), Percy H. and
Bertha Emma. Mr. Calvert is Steward and Chorister of the Methodist
Episcopal Church. He is a member of the I. 0. 0. F. and K. of H. He
is a Republican in politics, and an advocate of prohibition.
JOHN D. CARTER was one of the pioneers of “ the new purchase,”
a wealthy farmer of Brown Township, a native of Ashe Connty, N. C., is
the son of Nathaniel and Ann (Ramsy) Carter, and was born March 1,
1811. His parents came to Indiana in 1814, and settled in Orange
County, where they lived eight years, coming to Morgan County in 1822,
when they located upon a small tract of land entered from the Govern-
ment, and at once proceeded to erect a log cabin, upon the dirt floor of
which they stowed away their little family and scant supply of household
goods. Their stock, consisting of horses, cattle, sheep, hogs, geese and
ducks, they brought with them from Orange County. From a journal, writ-
ten by the subject of this sketch, in which it faithfully recounted the many
experiences of this family, we quote: “We saw hard times the first win-
ter; we had to cut down green beech and sugar trees for our cattle to eat
the buds; had to go from twenty to thirty miles for corn to make bread;
and five to six miles for help to raise the cabin.” But their experiences
were but repetitions of those of hundreds of brave pioneers whose hard-
ships and privations are recounted upon the pages of the early history of
our country. November 26, 1834, Mr. Carter was married to Ruth Pick-
ett, in the manner and form peculiar to the Friends’ Society, of which
they were both birthright members. This union has been blessed with
ten children—George, Amos (deceased), Vincent, Sarah Ann (deceased),
Mary, Ella (deceased), William P., Nathaniel, Benjamin, Harriet B. and
Tmma. Three of his sons, George, Vincent and Nathaniel, are promi-
nent attorneys at law in the city of Indianapolis, and his son William
lives in San Antonio, Tex. Mr. Carter has been one of the hardest work-
ing men of the county. His children have all been thoroughly educated,

and as they have arrived at the estate of men and women, have received’

bountifully of the world’s goods from the munificent hand of an ever gen-
erous parent. The declining years of his life are being happily spent
upon his magnificent farm of about 350 acres, one and a half miles south-
east of Mooresville, where at least once a year he assembles around his
hearthstone and at his sumptuous table his children and grandchildren,

and where the merry romp and laughter of the little folks are subdued to
- 14
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breathless silence, as they listen to the tales of pioneer life, as they come
from the lips of one who has been an actor in scenes that seem to their
young ears fraught with wondrous impossibilities. In politics, Mr. Car-
ter has always been a Republican of the most promounced type. Heisa
consistent Christian gentleman, and lives supremely happy in the glori-
ous anticipation of eternal life in Heaven.

NATHANIEL CARTER, native of Orange County, Ind., the sixth
child and third son of Nathaniel and Ann (Ramsey) Carter, natives of
North Oarolina, and of Irish and Scotch extraction respectively, was
born March 25, 1815. His parents came into Morgan County in 1821,
and located upon land entered from the Government, and where the two old
peoplespent the remainder of their days, and where Nathaniel has since re-
gided. He attended a little at the subscription schools and learned
something of reading and writing. November 23, 1837, he was married
at Plainfield, Ind., to Martha, daughter of Edward Chamness, a native
of North Carolina. She bore him six children—dJames R., Hannah,
Thomas F., Mary B., Nathaniel W. and William Edgar. His son,
Thomas F., was killed at the battle of Chattanooga, Tenn., on May 31,
1865. The mother of these children died October 2, 1871, at the azg;e of
fifty-four years, and February 13, 1873, subject was married at Mon-
rovia, Ind., to Louisa Jane (Hubbard) Blair, daughter of George Fub-
bard, deceased, native of North Carolina. Our subject and wife are
birthright members of the Friends’ Church. He is a Republican in pol-
itics, and a strong advocate of temperance. He gave the land gratis
upon which is located public school building No. 1. 'What Mr. Carter
possesses he has toiled for, and after giving away considerable land to
his children, he yet owns a nice farm of ninety scres, all in cultivation
and well improved. He lived with his parents and took care of them
till their death. His religious work and charities are mostly among the
poor of the country, and in such labor he is endeavoring to do the will of
the Everlasting Father.

MATTHEW COMER is the second son of Joseph and Hester (Comp-
ton) Comer, natives of North Carolina and Ohio, and of Irish and English
extraction respectively. Joseph Comer came to Indiana Territory in
1804, and located upon the site now occupied by the city of Richmond,
and Matthew was born July 1, 1825. He lived twenty-one years with
his parents, learned the habits of a farmer, and attended a few terms at the
subscription schools. The first twelve years of his majority were devoted
to the carpenter’s trade, an apprenticeship to which he began a short
time before. He was married in Randolph County, Ind., in November,
18486, to Adila J. Harris, who died March 27, 1881, having borne seven
children—Mary Jane, Jabez S.,/SarahA., Levi C., William C., Minnie H.
and Mattie F., all of whom are living at this writing (December, 1883). The
Comer and Harris families were of the Quaker faith, but having refused to
“ marry in meeting ” young Comer and wife were peremptorily dismissed,
and the Methodist Episcopal Church immediately gained two new mem-
bers. August 13, 1862, Mr. Comer enlisted at Richmond, Ind., in Com-
pany B, Fifth Indiana Cavalry, and served to the close of the war. His
Company was the first to charge upon and occupy the town of Knoxville,
Tenn. They also took a prominent part in the capture of the famous
command of John A. Morgan. He came to Mooresville in 1865, and soon
afterward embarked in the saw mill business, which he has since fol-
lowed, and at which he has made considerable money. He is a strict
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temperance man, a Republican in polities, and a citizen of unimpeachable
integrity.

PAUL COX (deceased) was a native of Pennsylvania, son of Alexan-

der and Elizabeth Cox; was born November 6, 1808, and died March 15, *

1876. He had four brothers and two sisters, two of the brothers being
older than himself. He was reared a farmer and followed it all his life,
though he was a brick-mason by trade, and also did a great deal in that

_line. His parents removed from Pennsylvania to Ohio, and later on to

Indiana, and settled near Centreton, where they spent most of their after
lives. Paul received at the neighborhood schools in Indiana such educa-
tion as was practicable in so new a country. He was first married when
quite young to Mary Mathews, who bore him seven children—Milton,
Morgan, Elizabeth Ann, Emily, Harriet (deceased), Margaret and George.
The mother of these children died in April, 1846, and in the fall follow-
ing Mr. Cox was married in Morgan County to Elizabeth Chandler, who
bore him seven children—Morris, Alfred, Madison, Mariah, Ida, Laura
and Austin. Mr. Cox was a consistent member of the Christian Church,
as is also his widow. He inherited a small tract of land from his father,
but the rest of his property he worked for, leaving his family a handsome
patrimony which his widow has managed with skill. She was left with four
minor ehildren, which she reared and cared for, educated and made of
them honored and respected men and women. Mr. Cox was one of the
best citizens of Morgan County, strictly honest and upright in all his
dealings, beloved by his neighbors, and respected by all who knew him.

NATHAN DAY is the son of John and Editk (Lowder) Day, who were

\/born in North Carolina, where they met, Joved and married, and from

whence, as hopeful young pioneers they came fto Indiana in the year
1820. They located at once upon a tract of land which they entered
from the Government, and which lies about half a mile southeast from
the present town of Mooresville, in Morgan County. Here they under-
went the trials and hardships incident to pioneer life. Here their chil-
dren were born; here, by their united effort and direction, the primitive
forests were reduced and replaced by broad and fertile fields, and from
here, when life was no longer franght with privations and anxious cares, they
took their final leave of all earthly things, and, their spirits returning to
Him who gave them, their bodies were laid away to await the final resur-
rection morn. * They were members of the Friends’ Church, and died in
the sixtieth and fiftieth-fourth years of their ages respectively. Nathan
is their third son and the only one of the family now living. He was
born June 29, 1843, and has always lived upon the old homestead which
he now owns. He was married November 24, 1864, to Candace C.,
daughter of Asbury Rooker, and has had bern to him two children—
Nellie E. and Francis R. Mr. and Mrs. Day are members of the Friends’
Church, and he belongs to the I. 0. O. F. THe is a strict temperance
man, and in politics a Republican. His farm, consisting of 120 acres, ie
one of the best improved and most valuable in the neighborhood.
JOSEPH H. EDWARDS is the son of Henry J. and Hannah (Davis)
Bdwards, natives of Virginia and North Carolina respectively; was born
in Grayson County, Va., May 4, 1838, and was brought by his parents to
Indiana in 1837. They settled first in Wayne County, where they lived
about twelve years, and where the mother died. The family afterward
removed to Randolph County, where the father is living at this writing.
Joseph H. was married in Hendricks County, November 24, 1859, to
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Sarah Jane Mills, who has borne him seven children—Tucinda A.. Ase-
nath D., Martha A.; Luna J., Effie M., Lottie C. and an infant deceased,
not named. Mr. Edwards was reared upon a farm, and sent to the neigh-
borhood schools when a boy, where he learned something of the element-
ary studies. In the spring of 1856, he came into Morgan County, lived
a few years at Mooresville, and removed to his farm where he has since
resided. He was taken seriously ill in July, 1882, and has never fully
recovered. He has sold his farm property with a view to removing into
Mooresville, where he will make his future home. Mr. Edwards is a
self-made man. His mother died when he was but thirteen years of age,
and his father turned him at once upon the world. He worked four
years for one man at $50 per year, and two years after at something of
an increase. Thus he began life, and slowly but surely he has crept up.
He has given each of his children $2,000, and reserved to himself a
handsome competency. Both he and wife are members of the Methodist
Episcopal Church, having come into that organization from the Society
of Friends. .

GEORGE FARMER is a farmer, a native of Guilford County, N.
C., is the third of ten children—four sons and six daughters—of Jacob
and Pena (Shoffner) Farmer, natives of North Carolina and of German
descent, and was born April 11, 1821. His parents came to Morgan
County in 1824, and after about eight years’ residence in Brown Town-
ship removed to Hendricks County, where they lived the remainder of
their days, the father dying in September, 1861, in the seventy-ninth
year of his age, and the mother in August, 1865, in the sixty-eighth
year of her age. George was reared upon a farm, at the subscription
school learned something of reading, writing and arithmetic, and lived

BROWN TOWNSHIP AND MOORESVILLE. 223

twenty-eighth year of his age when our subject was about three years of
age. His mother died in Hendricks County November 19, 1880, in the
seventy-third year of her age. Subject lived with his mother until he
was about twenty-one years of age, when he set out in the world for him-
self. On March 21, 1850, he was married, at West Union, Morgan
County, to Ann, daughter of David and Mary Lindley, natives of North
Carolina. By this marriage he had born to him four children—Charles
(farmer in Hardin County, Iowa), Mary E. (wife of Thadeus S. Town-
send, now at Albany, Oreg.), Franklin M. (in Morgan County), and Flora
E. (wife of James P. Henley, of Hendricks County, Ind.). The mother
of these children died February 1, 1862, in the thirty-third year of her
age. On April 15, 1863, he was next married to Beulah, daughter of
William and Ann Hadley, natives of North Carolina. By this marriage
two children were born, Joshua and Edgar. Mr. Hadley's second wife
died February 24, 1867, in the thirty-seventh year of her age, and on
January 14, 1869, he married for his third wife Sallie A., daughter
of William B. and Ludah E. Hubbard, natives of North Carolina. Mr.
and Mrs. Hadley are both birthright members of the Friends’ Society,
and are at present Elders in the White Lick Church of that denomina-
tion; Mr. H. is also one of the Trustees of this church. He is a liberal giver
to all churches and schools in his vieinity without regard to sect or creed.
In politics, he is a Republican; is also an ardent temperance man and ad-
vocate, and a friend of prohibition at all times. From the estate of his
father, he inherited a tract of land of small value. The rest of his prop-
erty he has acquired by his own industry. He owns at present a fine
farm of 285 acres, nearly all in cultivation, well improved and stocked
with horses, hogs and cattle.. The farm and stock receive his personal
supervision and management. e came into Morgan County in the

with his parents until twenty-eight years of age, when, on December 24,
1848, he was married in Monroe Township, Morgan County, to Lydia
Tlliott, danghter of Alfred Elliott, also a native of North Carolina, and
by this marriage he has had born to him eleven children, the first of
whom died in infancy not named. The others were dJacob (died at the
age of seven years), Mary, Caroline, Alfred, William, Catharine, . John,
Alvaro (died), George and Leonard R. Both Mr. and Mrs. F. are mem-
bers of the Methodist Episcopal Church, and Mr. F. is a member of the

spring of 1863, and located upon the farm since owned and occupied by MW 0
him, about one-half mile north of the town of Mooresville. He isa I
reputable and influential citizen, respected by his neighbors and esteemed ‘;MHMW
by his church as one of its most substantial pillars and supporters. His i
wife is a woman of unquestionable merit, and noted for her charities and
Christian conduct.

CLINTON C. HADLEY, druggist, Mooresville, Ind., was born in

b oo

It
|

—1

I. 0. O. F. at Mooresville. He removed from Guilford Township, Hen-
dricks County to Brown Township, Morgan County, in August, 1858,
where he purchased and settled upon the farm he has since owned and
occupied. He was one of the incorporators of the Mooresville Monitor.
He and his wife inherited from their respective parents a small sum of
money, and the rest of their possessions have been acquired by their
united industry. He owns at present a splendid farm of 200 acres,
mostly in cultivation, well improved, stocked and equipped for agricult-
ural purposes. In politics, he is a Kepublican. He is an ardent tem-
perance man and an advocate of prohibition. He is a good, substantial
citizen, held in high esteem by his neighbors and those who come in
contact with him. i

ABNER HADLEY, farmer, Brown Township, Morgan Co., Ind., is a

' native of Hendricks County, Ind., and the third of four children of

Joshua B. and Mary T. '(Hadley) Hadley, natives of North Carolina.
He was born December 28, 1828; reared upon a farm; at the public
schools of Indiana acquired a good English education, and in his early
manhood taught two terms in Hendricks County. His father died in the

~ -

Brown Township, Morgan County, Ind., May 11, 1855, and is the young-
est of four children of Isaiah and Emily (Hadley) Hadley, natives of
Ohio and Tndiana respectively. He was but about two years of age when
his father died. The first sixteen years were spent by Clinton C. upon
the farm, and by devoting a portion of the time to his studies at the
Mooresville school he acquired a good English education. At the age
of eighteen, he began the drug business as clerk for Joseph Pool, and
two vears afterward,in the fall of 1875, he went to Mt. Carmel, Ill., and
for one year had charge of a drug house belonging to his brother. Re-
turning to Mooresville he clerked for Hadley & Harvey, druggists, until
the summer of 1880, when he bought out the interest of the senior mem-
ber of the firm, and shortly afterward became the sole owner of the estab-
lishment. Mr. Hadley isa “birthright ” member of the Friends’ Church,
and fills official chairs in the Subordinate Lodge and Encampment of the
I 0. 0. F. He is unmarried,and in consequence very popular with the
ladies, a wide-awake Republican politically, and possessed of all the es-
sential requisites to an upright citizen and gentleman.
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JOHN FRANKLIN HADLEY is of the sturdy old Quaker stock, and
adheres faithfully to the teachings of that unostentatious society. A
native farmer and stock grower of Brown Township, is the youngest son
of Aaron and Lydia (Hadley) Hadley, originally of North Carolina, was
born Junuary 14, 1840, and educated at the Friends White Lick School,
He was married, March 13, 1860, to Lydia Ann, daughter of William
Macy (deceased), and has had - born to him four children—William A.,
Linnie, Mahlon and Cora. His son William is studying medicine, Mah-
lon is at Earlham College,and the accomplishments of his daughters are not
being neglected. In the fall of 1880, Mr. Hadley was elected County
Commissioner, and re-elected thereto in 1882. He was one of the organ-
izers of the Farmers’ Bank of Mooresville, and for eight years was one
of its directors. Though a straight Republican politically, he is not
radically partisan, and to this fact was due his first nomination for the
office of County Commissioner. His second nomination and election re-
sulted naturally from the efficient manner in which the affairs of the
office were administered during his first incumbency. Mr. Hadley holds
the office of Assistant Dictator in the order of K. of H.; he is an unqual-
ified advocate of prohibition, and was among the very first public men in
Morgan County to oppose the system of legally licensing the whisky traffic.
Mr. H. owns and resides upon the farm upon which he was born and
reared.

ARNOLD W. HADLEY was born at Mooresville, Ind., May 8, 1846.
His parents, Jeremiah and Eliza (McCracken) Hadley, had eight chil.
dren, of whom our subject was third, with two brothers older. He lived
upon the farm with his parents until he was twenty-one years of age,
spending about one-third of his “school age” in pursuit of an education.
In 1867, he went to Kansas, and remained six years—four years in mer-
cantile business, and two dealing in Jive stock. Returning to Indiana in
1878, he for the next succeeding ten years, in company with his brother,
ran the Mooresville Elevator, handling large quantities of grain, and also
dealt extensively in coal. September 16, 1873, he was married at Mon-
rovia to Almeda, daughter of Amos Hunt, deceased, and has had born to
him two children—Edward J. and Hermon A. In April, 1883, as the
head and sole manager of the firm of A. W. Hadley & Bro., he began the
manufacture of drain tile at Mooresville, and at this writing they have
one of the most extensive works of the kind in Morgan County. Mr.
Hadley and wife are members of the Friends’ Church, and he is Deputy
(District) Grand Dictator of the Order of Knights of Honor. Subject is
a Republican in politics, an active worker in the cause of temperafice,

and prominently identified with the educational interests of Mooresville.

WILLIAM FOSTER HADLEY was born in Brown Township,
Morgan County, Ind., August 3, 1855. His parents, Jeremiah and
Eliza BE. (McCracken) Hadley, were North Carolinians, and traced their
ancestral blood to the persecuted Quakers of the British Isle. They
accompanied their respective parents into Indiana probably about half a
century ago, and here they married and reared a family of eight children,
William F. being the youngest son and seventh child. The subject of
this sketch spent the first eight years of his life upon the farm, and his
education, which consisted of a thorough English course, was acquired
before he was seventeen years of age. At the age of twelve years, he was
placed in charge of the M. & M. Gravel Road Toll Gate, just west of
Mooresville, and at this time his business career commenced. At the age
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ntered the grocery house of R. R. Scott, at Mooresville, as
glfeﬁllftesﬁah%fe followingg yearystudied the mysteries of pharmacy hl_n
the drug store of J. Edwards. It will not be forgotten that up Et(j)l §7,125

time his winters had been regularly spent at s:chool. In the fall o i 5

he went into the Mooresville office of the Indianapolis & Vmcenges ‘ Eal -

road, and there learned the art of telegraphy, which he followe ‘Il)_lode.s-
gionally for the next nine years. December 29, 1880, he was maucieb in

Morgan County to Cassie, daughter of George Farmor, and has hah' on%

40 him one child—Everard F. May 16, 188-_1, he was elected cashier IO

the Farmers’ Bank of Mooresville, and has since filled that position. 1 1;

the spring of 1882, the citizens tendered him the office of Treas;{rel_ o)

Mooresville, but the trust was declined for reasons of his own. fedusx a

member of the firm of A. W. Hadley & Bro., in the.manufactl}re () K ran:i

tiles, and up to June, 1883, was largely interested in the grain an d(-zo:at

business. He is a member of the Methodist Episcopal Chureh, an 13

politics a Republican. He is a thorough business man, a gentleman an

& SC]Smllillr.l HADLEY, eldest son of John and Elenor (Chambless) Hadle:y,

nativ;as of iNorth Carolina, was born in Morgan County, Ind., October 126,[
1838. He grew to manhood upon a farm, and during his youth recfewhe_

a good English education at the subscription and public schools é) % 13

native county, supplemented by a course ab the Parke County ra,t_e
School. October 2, 1858, he was married to Samira Ann Kemp, a ]?te.m 1}9

of Parke County, Ind., and has had born to him two chll_dren—Om is ;
(dead) and Lizzie E. Mr. and Mrs. Hadley are bll‘th]ilghf men.lbers of

the Friends’ Church, and Mr. Hadley belongs to the order of Knights o
Honor. In politics, he is a Republican, and with the antl‘-temperqn(tae
olement he admits of no compromise. He removed .from his farm into
Mooresville about the year 1872, and engaged at once in the drug b1u smesxiiii
which he has since followed. He owns a nice farre of eighty acres, I:he
improved, stocked and cultivated, and in addltlon. to his many ‘;) er
duties, he has been for several years pa:%t_ Deputy United States qu 1'1135{-
tor at Mooresville. His worldly acquisitions are the results of his indi-

i ement.

‘V]dl.}%&%o%.aﬁdiﬁnggigwas born at Mooresville, Ind., on January 2, 1842,
and is the eldest of eleven children born to his parents, William H. and
Mary (Putner) Hinson, of North Carolina. His early life was gpentlup(c))n
the farm, and his education acquired at the Mom_ceswllg High _bcho% .1 n
August 15, 1861, he enrolled in Company C, Thirty-third Ind‘mn.a do 1}11];
teer Infantry, and served until September, 1865, having veteranize vgll ;
his regiment in 1863. He took part in many hard-fought battles, and a
Kenesaw Mountain, June 29, 1863, as a result from a shot ﬁredl7 -frféjfljga
Mississippi rifle, lost his right leg above the knee. December 2 R o
he was married at Mooresville to Margaret Elliott, who died October .
1881, having borne him three children—Viola, Maude (élece.aasgd)i 8361316
Hithel E. Mr. Hinson was elected Assessor of Brown Township in !
and held the office about five years. In 1869, he was appointed Pfé)st-
master of Mooresville, and has since been the 1ncumben_t of thz}'t ﬁc? ce.
To his present wife—Flora B. Roseberry—he was I}qarmed at Coffman,
Mo., August 1, 1883. Mr. Hinson owns both residence fmd busmeﬁs
property in Mooresville, and while, with reference to worldly googs,1 ?
is comfortable generally, nothing has been given him. Heis amember o
the Methodist Episcopal Church, and in politics a Republican.
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HENRY HOUSE, native of Prince William County, Va., and third
of eight children of John and Catharine B. (Bless) House, natives of
Germany, was born March 23, 1823. His parents came to America in
the year 1800, and into Morgan County in 1836, where they spent the
remainder of their lives. Our subject was reared upon a farm; remained
with bis parents till twenty-one years of age, and at the neighborhood
schools,both in Virginia and Indiana, acquired a fair English education.
His father died in 1874, at the age of eighty-four years, and his mother
two years earlier, at the age of seventy-seven. On September 5, 1845,
our subject was married, at Mooresville, to Elizabeth King, a native of
Indiana, who died September 28, 1848, leaving two children—Sarah Jane
and Harriet. Sarah Jane died at the age of five years. On October 25
1.849, he married Sarah E. Fultz, of Tennessee, and by her had born to
him eleven children——Anna, Virginia, Charlotte (deceased), Nathaniel
(deceased), Dora, Douglas, John, Otto, Catharine, Gertrude (deceased),
and Ethel. Mr. H. is a class leader in the Methodist Episcopal Church,
a Democrat in politics, and a temperance man from principle. He is an
industrious and successful farmer and stock-grower, and his property ac-
cumulations are due solely to his own industry. He owns 400 acres of
fine land in Morgan County, to the management of which he gives his
personal attention. He is a lover of learning, and a liberal supporter ot
churches and benevolent institutions without reference to sect or creed.

WILLIAM A. HUNT, editor of the Mooresville Monitor, is a native
of Martinsville,Ind.,and is the only child of Nathan A. and Mary A. (Coble)
Hunt, natives of the State of North Carolina, and of English and Ger-
man extraction respectively. William A. was born August 5, 1853, and
his parents removed to Mooresville in the year 1854, where, with the ex-
ception of two years spent in Danville, Ind., our subject has since resided.
At the age of fourteen years, he was thrown upon his own resources, and
his schooling, limited to about eight months in the aggregate, was pro-
cured atter that age. In 1865, he entered the confectionery store of his
grandfather, at Mooresville, and remained up to 1874. At this time, his
grandfather having died, he embarked in business on his own account,
and tor two years, though nearly destitute of financial capital, he man-
aged, young as he was, to support himself, his mother and grandmother,
both the latter being confirmed invalids. In 1877, he entered the office
of the Mooresville Herald, as a “ printer’s devil,”” where he remained
three years, learning the trade of a printer in the meantime, and in 1880
engaged as a compositor on the Mooresville Monitor, and in 1881, upon
the retirment of A. W. Macy, Mr. Hunt was appointed by the directors,
edilor, which position he has since held, and the duties of which he has
discharged with credit to himself and to the satisfaction of his patrons.
Since becoming the editor of the Monitor—which is owned by a joint-
stock company—he has by industry and economy been able to possess him-
self of two-thirds of its stock, and is at this writing, December, 1883, the
owner of a controlling interest. January 9, 1877, he was married, in
Mooresville, to Mary E. Dickinson, by whom he has had born to him two
children—Dwite A. and Margaret A. Mr. Hunt is a consistent member
of the Methodist Episcopal Church, and is Reporter or Secretary of the
Lodge of the Knights of Honor. He is also Secretary of the Old Set-
tlers’ Association, of the district comprising the counties of Morgan,
Hendricks, Johnson and Monroe. He is a writer of more than ordinary
ability, and the Monitor, under his management, is rapidly increasing in
popularity. i

s
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/Y GBEORGE ANDREW JACKSON was born in Stokes County, N. C.,

y

June 1, 1842, and is the sixth of the twelve children born to William
and Celia (Gorden) Jackson. He was reared a farmer, and came to this
county in February, 1866; he resided for some time in Madison Town-
ship, and then came to Brown Township and purchased a farm of 100
acres, which he has well stocked and improved. May 21, 1871, he mar-
ried Lucy J. Perkey,}!ldaughter of George and Lucy (Landers) Perkey,
and to this marriage have been born the following children: Violette J7,
Taura Etta, William Sidney, George Amer, Louisa Jane and Allen Hick-
lin. Mr. Jackson is a member of Mooresville Lodge, No. 78, F. & A M,
and Mrs. Jackson is a member of the Christian Church. |

BENJAMIN FRANKLIN JONES, carriage-trimmer and harness-
maker at Mooresville, Ind., is a native of Warren County, Ohio; is the
youngest of ten children, four sons and six daughters, of Nathan and
Margaret (Hawkins) Jones, natives of New Jersey and Ohio, and of
Welsh and English extraction respectively, and was born May 9, 1846,
He was reared upon a farm, and at the public schools of Ohio acquired a
good English education. September 2, 1864, he enrolled at Waynesville,
Ohio, in Company B, One Hundred and Eightieth Ohio Volunteer In-
tantry, and served to July 25, 1865. when he was honorably discharged
with the rank of Duty Sergeant on account of cessation of war. While
in the service, he participated in the battle of Kingston, N. C., and a
number of skirmishes. Soon after enlistment, he was detached and put
into garrison duty. Mr. Jones came to Mooresville in November, 1870,
and took service with Dorland & Gregory, dealers in hardware and agri-
cultural implements. In January, 1873, he began the trade of harness-
maker and carriage-trimmer, and, in 1876, set up in business on his own
account. April 26, 1876, he was married at New Albany, Ind., to Emma
Thompson, a native of Indiana, and daughter of Rev. I. N. Thompson,
and by this marriage he has had born to him one child—Bertram T.
After returning from the army, he was engaged in the dry goods business
at Lebanon, Ohio, during the year 1867 and a part of 1868, and, in
1869-70, he was at Oskaloosa, Iowa, in the grocery business. Aside
from a small inheritance from the estate of his father, he has worked for
what he has, and owns a nice residence property and'the splendid brick
building in which he carries on his business. In politics, he is a wide-
awake Republican, a temperance man and an advocate of prohibition.
From 1879 to 1882, he carried on the manufacture of carriages and bug-
gies in addition to his other business, and altogether his industrious
efforts have proved satisfactorily remunerative. He is a highly respected
citizen and a reliable business man. In 1876, he was Town Clerk of
Mooresville, and as such wrote and compiled the town ordinances. The
tather of our subject died in August, 1865, at the age of sixty-eight
years. His mother yet lives at the age of about seventy-eight years, and
makes her home with him.

THOMAS ELWOOD LAWRENCE was born in Grant County, Ind.,
June 19, 1847, and was the eldest of eight children—four sons and four
daughters—of William and Priscilla (Williams) Lawrence, natives re-
spectively of North Carolina and Indiana. When eighteen years of age,
our subject accompanied his parents to Morgan County, where he has

since lived. and where his father died in 1883, at the age of sixty-four

years, and his mother eight years before, at the age of fifty-one. Subject
was educated at the public schools, five terms of which he afterward
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taught in Morgan County. He married Delphina Harvey April 26, 1871,
and has two children—Ivalue and Gertrude. He is a birthright member
of the Friends’ Church, in which society his mother was for fifteen years
preceding her death a prominent minister. Mr. L. is a prominent Odd
Fellow, a Republican politically, and an ardent temperance worker, In
1882, he rented out his farm, and engaged in the lumber business at
Mooresville, Martinsville and other points, and is to-day one of the most
extensive hard-wood lumber dealers in the county, dealing extensively in
walnut lumber. To give an idea of the present value of walnut lumber,
we will state that Mr. Lawrence has just shipped one car load of five-
eights walnut, of 14,230 feet, which brought him, loaded on car at
Mooresville, $825.35.

- JAMES MADISON LEATHERS (deceased), native of Franklin
County, Ky., was born May 15, 1814, and died July 3, 1880. In 1828,
he accompanied his hrother Thomas J. into Indiana, and spent the rest of
his life in Morgan County. His school advantages were very limited,
though he learned something of reading, writing and arithmetic by at-
tendance at the subscription schools when not engaged upon the farm.
He married Martha Jane McDonald September 15, 1835, and she bore
hira twelve children—William W. (deceased), Charles S., Nancy A.,
Mary, Theodore (deceased), John (deceased), Margaret (deceased}, Sam-
vel (deceased), Sarah M., Harrison, Douglass and Mintie E. From the
age of fourteen years until the day of his death, subject was a consistent
member of the Christian Church, and was for many years a Master Ma-
son. His first wife died March 4, 1871, and November 5, of the same
year, he was married in Morgan County, Ind., to Phabe T. Jones, daugh-
ter of the Rev. H. T. Burge. By this marriage he had born to him
three children —Florence Mabel, Bessie B. (deceased), and Samuel M.
Mr. L. left his family a mnice property, consisting, among other
things, of a fine farm of 183 acres, which his widow manages with skill
and success. Ie was a great religious worker, educated his children, and
voted the Democratic ticket with persistent regularity.

RILEY McORARY is a native of North Carolina, but the name of
his father and the date of his birth are unknown. He was left an orphan
at a very early period of his existence, and bound out until twenty-one
years of age. He was taught only in manual labor, and has turned his
accomplishments in that direction to good account. He was about twen-
ty-one years of age when he came into Morgan County, probably about
1834-35, and for several years carried on the blacksmith business at
Mooresville, ' at which he made considerable money. On April 2, 1837,
he married Gracie Staley, who bore him twelve children—Mary Jane,
John Wesley, William A., James F. (deceased), Samuel L., Margaret M.
(deceased), Sarah M. (deceased), Rebecca (deceased), Elizabeth .,
George T., Joseph W. (deceased), David J. (deceased). The mother of
these children died in 1870, and January 3, 1873, he married Mary Jane
Lockwood, who has borne him three sons—Franklin (deceased), Charles
and Frederick. He lives now upon his farm, about one mile north of
Mooresville, and makes a specialty of breeding thoroughbred hogs. In
addition to his home place of 186 acres, he owns a fine farm in Hendricks
County. He has done as much hard work as any man of his age in any
country. He is a consistent member of the Methodist Episcopal Church,
a Democrat in politics, and has never in his life used tobacco or whisky,
nor had one dollar given to him.
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PHILIP McNAB, M. D., a native of Morgfm County, Ind., only
gon of Henry and Casandra (Evans) McNab, natives of Kentucky, and
of Scoteh and Welsh extraction respectively, was born July 12, 1183.37
Philip was reared upon a farm and educated at the Northwestern Chris-
tian University at Indianapolis. In the summer of 1859, he entered
the office of Dr. Ford at Wabash, Ind., and began the study of medicine,
and the following fall and winter took a full course ,Of lectures at Ann
Arbor (Mich.) University. Returning to Wabash for the summer, he
attended the succeeding fall and winter at Ann Arbor, from whence ‘he
graduatedfin chemistry in the spring of 1861,and in May of this year (1861),
he opened an office at La Gro, Ind., and practiced medicine for the next
two years. In March, 1863, he entered Long Island Hospital College,
Brooklyn, and in June, 1863, graduated therefrom with the degree of
Doctor of Medicine, and after another short stay at La Gro remo_ved to
Indianapolis,where in the beginning of 1864, he formed a partnership with
Dr. R. T. Brown, Professor of Natural Sciences in the Nort_hwestern Qhrls-
tian University, and for four years following pursued his profession of

hysician and surgeon. In the fall of 1868, he came into Morgan County,
and the following year opened an office in West Newton, in Marion

. Qounty. where he remained about three years. In November, 1872, he

-emoved to Mooresville, Ind., where he immediately took rank among the
}sading men of his profession. On July 29, 18_61, he was married at
Bethel, Me., to Mary, daughter of Aaron a}nd Rubie Mason, ‘of that State,

and by this union he has had born to him two children—Solon Mason,

now a student at Butler University, and Howard Barlow, a resident of
Arizona Territory. Dr. McNab is respected for the knowle@ge he bas
gained in his profession, in the practice of which he has _en]oyeq more
than ordinary experience. Some years since, he was assqmated with Dr.
1. D. Waterman, of Indianapolis, as expert in the chemical analysis of
the stomach of a Mrs. Dr. Beason, who, it was alleged, had been mur-

dered by her husband at Kokomo, Ind., and was one of the most' cele-
brated cases of the day. Later on, in 1‘873, he was employed in the
same capacity in the case of Basil Bailey, another notorious case, at
Frankfort, Ind., and was the author of the e?;haustlve gynopsis of the
analysis published in the Mooresville Enterprise, June 19, 1873. Upon
the analysis in the case first named, he was hlgh}y compl}m.ented by the
celebrated Prof. Blainey, of Chicago, who fully indorsed it in every par-
ticular. The subject of this sketch is a man of versatile ability. His
lectures on “ Medical Sciences ” before the society of physicians and sur-
geons, upon Physiology before the high school, and upon temperance befT
fore the people, are noted for their purity of dietion and originality o

thought and eloquence of delivery. At this writing (November 1883),
Dr. McNabb is Secretary of the Mooresville Liodge of Free _and Accepted
Masons; member of both County and State Medical Societies, an active
Republican in politics, an ardent “ Prohibitionist,” a oonglstent m'emb.er
of the Christian Church, and in the enjoyment of a lucrative practice in
the community where he is best known, and therefore most highly
esteemed. ) ]

REV. PERRY T. MACY, a wealthy and influential farmer and stock
grower, was born in Randolph County, Ind., August 19, 1825, and there
lived upon the farm with his parents, William and Hannah (Hinshaw)
Macy, until he was twenty-three years old. His parents, who were na-
tives of North Carolina, and descended from the HEnglish and Irish
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respectively, had thirteen children (seven sons and six daughters), of
whom our subject was the ninth, with five older brothers. The subscrip-
tion schools supplied the source of his education, which was limited to
elementary studies. Though he continued to reside in his native county
until the spring of 1856, he was married in Morgan County September
14, 1848, to Charity, daughter of Henry Mills. She bore him four
children, three of whom, Albert W., Charles Li. and Ida Ellen, were liy-
ing at her death, which occurred December 27, 1863. August 26, 1869,
he married in Dallas County, Iowa, Rebecca Hadley, daughter of Geurge
Bowles, and has had born to him two children—0Oliver P. and Vernon D,
Rev. Mr. Macy has been many years regularrecorded minister of the Friends
Church, and since moving to Morgan County he hasowned and occupied
the farm upon which ke now resides, about one mile west of Mooresville.
From 1860 to 1872, he was superintendent of the business department of
the Mooresville High School, and for two years, 1878-74, was proprietor
of the Mooresville Enterprise, a weekly paper now known as the Moores-
ville Monitor. His son, Albert, W., is at this writing (December, 1883)
the talented editor of the Richmond (Ind.) Palladium. Our subject is
well supplied with this world’s goods, nearly all of which have been ac-
quired by his own industry. :

ALLEN T. MANKER was born in Highland County, Ohio, April 15,
1827; is the sixth son of nine children (eight sons and one daughter) of
Jacob and Marion (Jones) Manker, natives of Ohio. His mother died
when he was five years of age, and the succeeding eleven years of his life
were spent at different places in the neighborhood of his nativity. He
acquired something of an education by a few months’ attendance at the
winter schools in his neighborhood,and in 1841, in the town of Hillsboro,
Ohio, began the trade of carpenter and served an apprenticeship of three
years. He came into Morgan County in 1845, and has since recognized
Mooresville as his home. In 1854-55, he ran a grist wmill in Montgome-
ry County, and from 1874 to 1880 had charge of the Magnolia Mills at
Mooresville two different times, aggregating something over three years.
Going thence to Brooklyn, Ind., he closed his mill experience by about
one year’s service. In 1856-57,he was engaged in the livery business at
Mooresville, and the rest of his life has been devoted to the business of
contractor and builder. He was married at Darlington, Ind., April 16,
1857, to Nancy J. Gaskill and hashad born to him seven children-—Frank
E., Clinton W., Mary I, James M., John W., Charles and Livingston.
In 1852, he “bull-whacked” across the plains from Iowa to Portland,
Oreg., and returned to New York via the Isthmus. The best buildings in
Mooresville are marks of his handiwork. He superintended the erection
of the new Methodist Hpiscopal Church, drew the plans of the Masonic
building, and erected the Odd Fellows Hall. He is a member of the
Methodist Episcopal Church, belongs to the Masons and Knights of
Honor; is a striet temperance man, and in politics an out-and-out Demo-
crat.

GILES BEFORD MITCHELL, M. D. (deceased), was born in Bar-
tholomew County, Ind.,, November 17, 1822. His parents, Giles and
Mary (Moore) Mitchell, natives of Virginia and Kentucky respectively,
were married in Kentucky in 1807, and emigrated to Indiana in 1810,
locating in Charleston, Clarke County, when the only buildings there were
a block-house and a log fort. In 1820, they removed into Bartholomew
County, and in 1833 settled in MMartinsville, Morgan County, where Giles
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Beford, who was the fourth of a family of six children, acquired the
rudiments of an English education. In about 1837, he began the study of
medicine with Dr. Barnard, of Martinsville, and at the end of one year
entered the Ohio Medical College at Cincinnati, from which institution
he subsequently graduated as M. D. He practiced medicine a few years
in Martinsviile, and from 1847 to 1857 in Mooresville, when he returned
to Martinsville and embarked in the mercantile business.  This he fol-
lowed about three years, but growing dissatisfied sold out and returned
to Mooresville, where he resumed his practice which he continued up to

within a few days of his death, which occurred October 6, 1878. He

was a man of much more than ordinary mental caliber, and his success
through life was due to hisjown industry, emergy, and indomnitable

erseverance in the pursuit of knowledge. ~ He was married, November
30, 1847, at Mooresville, to Sarah Reagan, daughter of Reason Reagan,
an early settler of Morgan County, and had born to him six children—
Mary E., Laura A. (deceased), John (deceased), Ida E. (deceased). Sarah
V. (deceased), Emma G., and William L. At his death, Dr. M. had
been many years a consistent member of the M. E. Church, and a Mason

.in high standing. He was one of the organizers of the Farmers’ Bank

of Mooresville, and for several years its President. In politics, he was
an unswerving Democrat, and was at one time his party’s candidate for
Representative in the State Legislature. He esteemed his profession
above all other employments in which he was engaged, and devoted him-
self to the bank only because the accumulation of his toil required it.
His aim was to be a successful practitioner, and he allowed nothing to
conflict with his darling purpose. His perceptions were very keen, and
in the treatment of acute diseases he was very successful. ~ Much of his
extensive practice was due to the promptness of his calls. He attended
strictly to work, and was careful not to neglect any of his patients. He
took hold with a firm hand, and the result was not doubtful. His suc-
cessful career is a brilliant example of what can be accomplished by
earnest devotion to present duty. He started with nothing, having to
sign a note for borrowed money with which to prosecute his studies in
the medical college. As abusiness man, he was exact in his habits and
prided himself on system in all that belonged to his affairs. When he
received certain premonition of his approaching death, he arranged to
settle his business, that future embarrassment might be avoided.  He be-
lieved in applying bank principles to ordinary business affairs, and this
system, no doubt, had much to do with his success in temporal matters.
He deserved great credit and reaped a liberal harvest for his painstakings
in departments of duty. He left his family a handsome patrimony,
which has been skillfully managed by his surviving widow.

JOHN NAUGLE, blacksmith and wood worker, Mooresville, Ind.,
second son of Emanuel and Delinda (Reede) Naugle, natives of Pennsylva-
nia and Virginia, and of German and English extraction respectively; was
born in Scott County, Ind., October 25, 1832. He was reared upon a
farm, and at the common schools acquired the rudiments of an English
education. On January 1, 1854, he was married at Salem, Washington

County, Ind., to Charlotte A. Hoggett, by whom he has had born to him
ten children, two of whom died in infancy, not named; the others were
named as follows: John Albert, Joseph Wilburn, Edward Emanuel, Alice
Irene, Leonora (deceased), Geeorge Elmer (deceased), Ernest Morton (de-
ceased) and Archibald T. Both Mr. and Mrs. Naugle are members of the
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Methodist Episcopal Church. Mr. Naugle came to Mooresville in Fel,.
ruary, 1864, and for the next five years followed blacksmithing. ~Having
patented a garden and field hoe, he for a few months traveled from place
to place introducing them. He next perfected other patents, and devoteq
his time to them for about three years. In 1871, he removed with hig
family to Center Valley in Hendricks County, and lived there four years.
He then lived seven years at Valley Mills, in Marion County, and carried
on a blacksmith and wood working shop. His shops having been con-
sumed by fire, he returned to Mooresville in August, 1883, and again
embarked in his old business. He now owns a nice residence property,
and the handsomest blacksmith and wood working shop combined in the
county. He employs, aside from his own labor, two skillful workmen
and is rapidly placing himself at the head of this particular branch of
business in the town of Mooresville. What he has of this world’s goods
he has worked for.

v ROBERT BARCLAY NEWBY was born at Salem, Washing-
ton County, Iund., July 21, 1827, and lived there, following farming as an
occupation, until eighteen years of age. He is the eldest son and third
child of five boys and three girls born to Micah and Mary (Coftin) Newby,
natives of North Carolina and of English descent. Robert B. was
schooled at the Washington County Seminary, and in the year 1845,
came to Mooresville, where he has since resided. His first service here
was with S. Moore, as clerk in a mercantile establishment, going into a
partnership with him at the end of five years. After being with him three
years Mr. Newby retired from the mercantile business, but continued a
partnership with Mr. Moore in farming and stock business for several
years. June 16, 1850. he married his partner’s daughter, Jane M., who
died in August, 1853, after having borne him two children—Samuel M.
and Frank W. {deceased). Mr. Newby married his second wife, Mary
Rariden, in Morgan County in April, 1870. Since 1870, he has been
farming and stock trading. In 1879, he was elected Marshal of Moores-
ville, and held the office one year, and since 1882, has been Justice of
the Peace of Brown Township, and in addition to the duties of that office,
is carrying on a general collecting agency. He is a member of the Ma-
sonic order, and in politics an active Republican. ;

<  WILLIAM D. OVERTON is the third son of James H. and Ann M.
(Parker) Overton, who spent their lives in North Carolina; he was born
in Northampton County that State, July 4, 1852; came to Morgan County,
Ind., in the winter of 1874, and up to the spring of 1882 farmed near
Monrovia. At this town, after a short trip West, Mr. Overton entered the
hardware store of Hobbs & Johnson, as clerk. In July, 1883, he bought
out the Mooresville elevator and has since been engaged in the grain
business. On November 19, 1878, he was married at Hillsdale, to
Maggie Lankford, who died March 21, 1881, leaving her husband one
child—William Henry. In 1860, Northampton County, N. C., cast 14
votes for Abraham Lincoln for President of the United States and James
H. Overton was one of the number. On account of his anti-Southern
principles, he was compelled to leave home during the war, and the
mother dying in the meantime, the family was completely broken up.
So it will be readily understood that so far in life William D. Overton
has ‘‘paddled his own canoe.” He is a member of the Methodist Epis-
copal Church, an earnest supporter of the cause of temperance, belongs
to the Masonic order and votes the Republican ticket.
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BENJAMIN HENRY PERCE, M. D., prominent physician and sur-
geon of Mooresville, Ind., is eldest of five children of Prosper and
Mary O. (Robinson) Perce, natives of New York and New Hampshire,
and of English and Scotch-Irish extraction respectively, was born in St.
Joseph County, Mich., June 27, 1838. His father having died in 1854,
leaving the family in somewhat straitened circumstances, the sub-
ject of this sketch was thrown early in life upon his own resources. He

had acquired some knowledge of sign writing and ornamental painting,

and did considerable work in that line, by which he accumulated a
small sum of money, the most of which he liberally gave to his mother
and young sister, and with $3 in his pocket and his extra wearing appar-
rel rolled up in an old silk handkerchief, young Perce left the place of
his nativity, and took up his march in search of a livelihood. Trudging
onward, stopping occasionally to saw wood for bread, he arrived finally
at the crossing of the New Albany & L. S. R. R. TFootsore, tired, hun-
gry and discouraged, he thrust his cane into the sand and allowed its
falling to decide the course of his further travel. It bent its head to the
gouth, and in the year 1857, after sleeping in fence corners and feasting
off dry erackers alone as sable night spread her wings over hill and dale, our
subject landed at Greencastle, Ind., the sole possessor of but 25 cents.
He retired without supper and began work before breakfast, so that when
dinner arrived—a good one to which he was kindly invited—the manner
in which he attacked the eatables, made the eyes of his generous host
and hostess stand out from very wonder. He alternated the two succeed-
ing years between Greencastle and Plainfield in following his trade, and
in the spring of 1859, came to Mooresville, and a year afterward formed
a partnership with a Mr. Mitchell in the manufacture of carriages and

' buggies, which enterprise failed in the following year. As “journey-

man,” he followed his old trade at different places up to the summer of
1862, when he raised a company preparatory to entering the army, and
drilled it, but declined a commission as its commander in favor of
Capt. Peoples. In August of this year, he entered as a Corporal in Com-
pany B, Twelfth Indiana Volunteer Infantry, and served up to June,
1865. In July, 1864, at Marietta, Ga., he received a sunstroke which
resulted in the destruction of his right eye. In October, 1864, he was
placed upon detached duty as Hospital Steward in the provisional divis-
ion of the Army of the Tennessee, going from there to Washington in
the same capacity in the Auger General Hospital, and here received his
final discharge. Dr. Perce is a self-educated man, having attended
school but about eighteen months of his early life. His first ideas of
medicine were acquired while in the army, and in the winter of 1872-73
he took a course of lectures at the Indiana Medical College, where the
following winter he held the office of Prosector to the Chair of Anatomy.
At the end of this session he graduated as Doctor of Medicine, and in
February, 1879, took ad eundem degree at the Medical College of Indiana.
In the spring of 1873, he began the practice of medicine at Mooresville,
and, growing rapidly into popularity, he to-day (December, 1883), ranks
among the foremost in his profession. May 14, 1867, he was married at
Mooresville to Eunice Ann, daughter of Jacob and Jemima Coombs.
By this marriage he had born to him two children—Henry (deceased in
infancy), and Elsie Gertrude. The mother of these children died Sep-
tember 18, 1874, and in April, 1876, the Doctor married at Plainfield,
Ind., his present wife, Elvira, daughter of Simon and Martha Hornaday.
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Two children, Edith (deceased in infancy) and Mary, have crowned this
union. The Doctor is a consistent member of the Methodist Fpiscopal
Church, belongs to the I. O. O. F., is a Master Mason, a Knight of
Honor; has filled most all the official chairs in these societies and is at
present Examiner of the one last named. In Masonry and Odd Fellow-
ship, he belongs to the Grand Lodges of the State. He is a member of
both county and State Medical societies, of the first of which he has
been twice President. He is in the enjoyment of a lucrative position,
owns a handsome property, is proud of his profession, and justly so of
his successes; he votes the Republican ticket.

AMOS W. REAGAN M. D., a prominent physician and surgeon of
Mooresville, Ind., is the fourth son of Reason and Diana (Wilson) Rea-
gan, natives of South Carolina, and probably of Irish and English
extraction respectively. Amos W. was born in Marion County, Ind.,
April 3, 1826, and the first sixteen years of his life \were spent upon a
farm, alternating, in the usual manner of farmers’ sons, the duties thereof
with oceasional attendance at the common schools. In 1845, he entered
Asbury University, where for three years he assiduously devoted himself
to study, acquiring a thorough English education and a fair familiarity
with the classics. January, 1847, in the office of Dr. G. B. Mitchell,
at Mooresville, he began the study of medicine, and at the end of one
year entered the Ohio Medical College at Cincinnati, from whence he
graduated in the spring of 1851 with the degree of M. D. Returning
to Mooresville, the Doctor formed a partnership with his old preceptor,
and for the next succeeding twenty-two years, interrupted only by a three
years’ service in the army, carried on the practice of medicine. Dr. Rea-
gan yose rapidly in the profession, and ere many years was ranked among
the most successful practitioners in Morgan County. Early in July,
1862, he entered the service of the United States, and was at once com-
missioned Surgeon of the Seventieth Indiana Volunteer Infantry. From
his enrollment to the close of the war, his command was never Withot_[t
his services, and the last eighteen months of the time he was A‘cting Bri-
gade Surgeon of the First Brigade, Third Division, .Twentle'th Army
Corps. The distinguished services of the old Seventieth Indiana are
immortalized in the already written history of our country, and it is not
essential to the purposes of this sketch that many bloody epgagemeqts
be here detailed or even referred to: Suffice it to say that in bivouac or in
battle, its sick, its wounded and its dying were never without the attend-
ance of one of the most skillful surgeons of the army. While at Bow-
ling Green, Ky., in September, 1862, the Doctor contracted c]{ronlc
diarrheea, resulting in disease of the heart. From the effects of this, he
has never recovered; but, on the contrary, the symptoms have _grown
perceptibly worse within the past few years. From 1872 to 1875, our
subject was associated with Dr. Perce at Mooresville, since the dissolu-
tion of which partnership he has-been alone in the practice. He has
been thrice married, and is the father of three children, two only of
whom are living. His first wife was Nancy Rooker, daughter of Jesse
Rooker, who died in the fall of 1858, after having been married about
three years. His second wife was Sarah K., a younger sister of his first
wife. She lived about five years of married life, and died without issue
in October, 1871. To his present wife, a Mrs. Ella Elliott, who has
borne him one child, he was married in November, 1882. In 1860, he
was elected to his third term of Trustee of Brown Township, but entered
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the United States Army before the term of his office expired. At this
writing (November, 1883), Dr. Reagan is enjoying a lucrative practice;
is a prominent member of both County and State Medical Societies; be-
longs to the Masonic order, and to the Methodist Episcopal Church; has
been for the past nine years member of the Mooresville High School
Board; is a Republican in politics, an upright gentleman, and rightfully
holds the esteem and confidence of the community in which his life has
so far been spent.

THOMAS A. RICHARDSON was born in Hendricks County, Ind.,
September 8, 1837. His parents, James and Rachel (Little) Richardson,
natives of Virginia, came to Mooresville when Thomas A. was an infant,
and here the father died in 1882, at the age of seventy-eight years. Up’
to fifteen years of age, our subject lived in town, and the next five years
he spent upon the farm. His education was limited to such as could be
had at the public schools, and having learned the tinner’s trade at
Mooresville, he, in 1861, went to Wabash, Ind., at which place and at
Indianapolis he worked as tinsmith for the next six years. October 5,
1865, he was murried at Mooresville, to Miss Hawk, daughter of Dr.
Charles Hawk, and has had born to him three children —an infant (de-,
ceased) not named, Gracie and Florence. Mr. Richardson is one of the
Stewards of the Methodist Church; Treasurer of the “Morgan ” Lodge,
No. 211, 1. O. O. F., and “ Guide ” of “ Vesty ” Lodge, No. 997, K. of H.
In the spring of 1880, he was elected Trustee of Brown Township, and
re-elected thereto in the spring of 1882. In the fall of the year last
named, he was defeated in his candidacy for Clerk of the Circuit Court.
In politics, he is a Democrat, and his preferment in a township largely
Republican at once indicates his popularity and his fitness for the office
to which he has been twice called. In the spring of 1868, in partner-
ship with J. H. Rusie, he embarked in the stove and tin business at
Mooresville, and here he has since remained and has been successful.
He is a self-made man, and the result is an upright and honorable mer-
chant, conscientious alike in his dealings and his public trusts.

DR. CLARK ROBBINS is the son of Alford and Isabel (Griggs)
Robbins, who were natives of Ohio, and of Irish extraction. They came
into Indiana about a half a century ago, and settled in Morgan County,
where on July 10, 1836, their second son, the subject of this sketch, was
born. Clark alternated the duties of farm life with attendance at the
public schools. He lost his father when but fourteen years of age, and
since that time has “paddled his own canoe.” At the age of nineteen, he
began the study of medicine in the office of Dr. Hutchinson at Moores-
ville, and in the winter of 1856-57 took a full course of lectures at Ann
Arbor (Mich.) University. The following winter, he spent profitably at
the Cincinnati (Ohio) Medical College, and in August, 1858, began the
practice of medicine at Monrovia, Ind. At the end of two years, he re-
moved to Brooklyn, Ind., where for the ensuing sixteen years he pur-
sued his profession with flattering success. The superior school advan-
tages of Martinsville took him to that town in the spring of 1876, and
from Martinsville he removed to Mooresville in the fall of 1880. Here
he has since plied bis profession with credit to himself and to the satis-
faction of his patrons. September 29, 1859, he was married in Monro-
via to Eliza J., daughter of John K. Wilhite, and has had born to him
one child—dJohn A. Mrs. Robbius having died, the Doctor was married,
December 10, 1863, at Centreton, Ind., to Melissa Hardwick, by whom

—— Is
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he has had born to him three children—-Ella, Minnie and Schuyler. He
and family are all members of the Methodist Protestant Church, the
Doctor in fact being one of its most substantial pillars. He is class
leader, Financial Steward, and Superintendent of the Sabbath school.
For twenty-three years, he was a member of the Methodist Episcopal
Church, but in February, 1881, joined the above body and has since
been an earnest worker. The only political office the Doctor ever
aspired to was that of Trustee of Clay Township, and this office he held
for ten consecutive years. Dr. Robbins was by education, early training
and many years’ practice, identified with the “ allopathic system,” but a
few years since he chose to adopt a more liberal course, so he cut loose
from “ creeds and ethics,’”’ and now practices under the best authorities
of the allopathie, eclectic and homeeopathic schools.

ISAAC W. ROOKER was born in Blount County, Tenn., November
25, 1806, and came to Indiana in 1818, with his parents, who settled in
Wayne County. From Wayne the family removed into Morgan County
in 1822, and located upon land entered from the United States Govern-
ment in Brown Township, and here the father and mother, William and
Nancy (Saffell) Rooker, spent the remainder of their lives. They were
natives of England and Old Virginia respectively,and lived to a very old
age, being each about eighty-four years when they departed this life.
They were married in Virginia, and lived together as man and wife about
sixty-five years, rearing a family of eleven children, five sons and six
daughters, of which number Isaac W. was tenth. He was reared as a
farmer, and had the benefit of about nine months’ schooling in Brown
. Township, but seems, however, to have improved his opportunities for
learning, for he was employed several months at teaching the young
children in his neighborhood. April 6, 1826, Mr. Rooker was married
in Morgan County to Polly Ballard, a native of Ohio, by whom he had
born to him nine children—Elizabeth J., Nancy A. (deceased), Rachael
BE. (deceased), Mary Ann, Calvin F., Rufus R. (deceased), John W.,
William A. (deceased), and Catharine I.. William A. died in the United
States Army, and the mother of these children died October 8, 1883, at
the age of about seventy-six years. Mr. and Mrs. R. both became mem-
bers of the Methodist Episcopal Church when young, and Mrs. R. lived
and died as a Christian should. His property, aside from a small in-
heritance from the estate of his father, has been acquired by his own in-
dustry, and like most of the pioneers of a new country, he learned lessons
of hardship and privation, and has eaten of the bread earned by the sweat
of the brow. He has always been of a somewhat retiring disposition,
and to attend strictly to his own business and allow other people to do
the same, has been the rule of his actions through life. His declining
years are being spent peacefully upon his old homestead, where his wants
are administered to by his daughter and her husband,who live with him,
and who spare no efforts to make his old age comfortable and bappy.

CAPT. SAMUEL M. ROOKER, citizen of Mooresville, Ind., is the
third son of Jesse S. and Candace L. (Conduitt) Rooker, natives of Ten-
nessee, and descendants from the German and the French, respectively.
He was born at Mooresville May 22, 1824. He was trained to farm life,
and educated at the public schools. His parents came into Morgan
County in the year 1816, and here spent the remainder of their years,
his father dying in 1843, at the age of forty-nine years, and his mother
ten years earlier, at the age of thirty-eight. He was married, February
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24,1844, to Nancy MecNeff, by whom he had born to him six children—Mary

Candace (deceased), Marion Howard (deceased), Kansas, Adalide, Otto B.
and Mattie B. August 13, 1862, he entered the service of the United
States-as Captain of Company E, Twelfth Indiana Volunteer Infantry,
and five months thereafter was compelled to resign on account of phys-
ical disability. Though out but a short time, he saw considerable real
service, having participated in the battle of Richmond, Ky., and ‘any
number of skirmishes. Returning from the war, he engaged in the mer-
cantile business at Mooresville, from which he retired in about a year,
and built the Magnolia Mills, and conducted them twelve or thirteen
years. He has bought and sold over 4,500 acres of valuable lands in
Brown Township; dealt extensively in grain, and been an active business
man generally. The panic of 1875-76 cost him over $20,000,and in Novem-
ber, 1881, his residence in Mooresville was completely destroyed by fire.
So, with all, Capt. Rooker has had his share of the ups and downs of life,
and still rides the waves. He is a member of the Methodist Episcopal
Church; high up in the order of Odd Fellows; a Democrat in politics; a
farmer by occupation, and takes life easy in his new splendid residence,
into which he has just moved.

WILLIAM ASBURY ROOKER (deceased) was born in Wayne
County, Ind., January 6, 1819, and died at Mooresville, Ind., August
16, 1849. He was the second son of Jesse S. and Candace L. (Conduitt)
Rooker, and had one brother and six sisters younger than himself. Af
the age of about twelve years, he entered a dry goods house as clerk, and
remained nine or ten years. On December 26, 1839, he was married to
Susan Rusie, daughter of Michael and Catharine (House) Rusie, of
Mooresville, and had born to him four children—Thomas B. D., Candace C.,
Mary C. and Wallace A. (deceased). Soon after the death of his father,
which occurred in 1843, our subject purchased the old homestead, consist-
ing of about 200 acres, the title to which descended to his widow, who yet
owns and manages it with the skill of an adept. Hisearly education was
limited to such as the neighborhood schools of the day afforded, but lived
to be a self-taught and self-made man, and at the time of his death was a
superior scholar. In 1837, he was elected Treasurer of Morgan County,
and was the incumbent of that office when he died. He was a consistent
member of the Methodist Episcopal Church, and a Master Mason, under
and by the rites and ceremonies of which order he was buried. In poli-
ties, he was a Democrat, but his election to the office of Treasurer of Mor-
gan County was due not alone to his rank and standing in that party, but
to his true worth and merit as a good citizen as well. His widow was
left with four small children, whom she has reared and cared for as only
a Christian mother could. Wallace A. died at the age of twenty-three
years. Thomas resides at home with his mother, and the two daughters,
married, and with families of their own, live in the immediate neighbor-
hood.

HENRY ROSSIER, a native of Canton Vaud, Switzerland, was born
December 11, 1839, and came to America in the spring of 1862. He was
well educated in the French language, and before he was nineteen years
of age had mastered the trade of watch-maker. His parents, Jacques and
Margaret (Tetaz) Rossier, had five sons and five daughters, and of the ten
children our subject was next to the youngest, and the only one who ever
came to America. From 1862 to 1867, Henry alternated between New
York, Indianapolis and Terre Haute, the first three years at his trade, and
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the last two in the grocery business. January 20, 1865, he was married
in Terre Haute to Emily Drotz, who has borne him five children—William,
Katie, Emil, Charles and Walter (deceased). By persistent effort and the
application of a naturally superior mind, Mr. Ross_ie?r has possessed him-
self of a good English education, and is at this writing (December, 1883)
one of the Trustees of the Mooresville High School. He was brought up
in the Presbyterian faith, but is now a member of the Methodist Episcopal
Church. He belongs to the . 0. O. F., A. F. & A. M. and K. of H. at
Mooresville, where he has been engaged in the jewelry business since the
year 1867.

JOHN H. RUSIE, born in Prince William County, Va., December 22,
1884 ; came here with his parents, Michael and Catharine (House) Rusie,
natives of Germany, who settled at Mooresville in 1836, and herespent the
remainder of their years. In his youth, our subject learned the tinner’s
trade, and received a fair English education. In 1855. he engaged in the
hardware and tin business, and followed it for five years; sold out, and
for the next two years managed the business for his successors. In Sep-
tember, 1857, he married Mary J. Olleman, daughter of James Olleman,
of Mooresville, and has had born to him three children—Arameda, James
H. and Frederick. August 17, 1862, Mr. Rusie entered the service of the
TUnited States as Fourth Duty Sergeant of Company E, Twelfth Indiana
Volunteer Infantry, and served to the close of the war, when he was honor-
ably discharged, having in the meantime been promoted to the rank of
Tirst Lieutenant. He took an active part in the battles of Richmond,
Ky.; Jackson, Miss.; Missionary Ridge, Atlanta, Gridersville, and

‘$avannah, Ga.; Columbia, S. C.; Bentonville, N. C., and in Sherman’s

celebrated campaign from Atlanta to the sea. He returned to Moores-
ville in 1865, and again embarked in the stove and tin business, to which
was subsequently added hardware. In the spring of 1882, he sold out
to his partner, Mr. T. A. Richardscn, and engaged at once in his present
business—of furniture and undertaking. He is a member of the Meth-
odist Episcopal Church; a prominent Mason and 0dd Fellow, and in
politics an uncompromising, first-class Democrat.

ROBERT R. SCOTT was born in Franklin County, Ind., July 16,

1883, and lived in the State of Wisconsin from 1842 to 1853, since which

time he has made Brown Township, Morgan County, his home. The first
seventeen years of his life were spent upon a farm, since when he has
been in mercantile business as much as twenty-five years. August 13,
1862, he enrolled in Company E, Twelfth Indiana Volunteers, and
served three years. He was promoted to Orderly Sergeant almost im-
mediately upon his entering the service, and was next raised in order to
the rank of Second Lieutenant, First Lieutenant, and in June, 1863, to
that of Captain of the company. He was with his command in all the
deadly battles through which it passed, and the history of Indiana’s
soldiery is augmented no little by the brilliant achievements of the ¢ gal-
lant Twelfth.” Capt. Scott retired from the mercantile business in 1883,
and has since been upon his farm recuperating his health, which had been
somewhat depleted by long confinement at indoor labor. He entered the
directory of the Mooresville Bank in 1880, and was elected its Vice
President the year following. In addition to his Mooresville property,
he owns five fine farms in Morgan County. All his property has been ac-
quired since the late war by his own industry, andina strictly legitimate
way. January, 1866,he was married to Mary Hadley, who died in August,
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1869, and in June, 1872, he married Louisa H. Harvey, who has borne
him five children—Mary, Carie, Jepnie, Robert H. and Sallie. Capt.
Scott is a member of the Methodist Episcopal Church, belongs to the
Masonic Order, is a Republican in politics, and is a citizen of whom
Mooresville may well be proud.

FREDERICK SHEETS, merchant, farmer and stock grower, was born
in Prince William County, Va., February 24, 1823. His parents, George
and Margaret (House) Sheets, were natives of Germany, and came to
America in 1814 or 1815, and in 1836 took up their abode at Mooresville,
and here spent the remainder of their days, the former dying in 1877 at
the age of ninety-one years, and the latter in the year of 1847 at the
age of fifty-seven years. Our subject Jearned the carpenter’s trade with
his father, and followed it about eight years. He was first married, at
Mooresville, to Charlotte, daughter of Dr. Charles Hawk, and has had
born to him six children —Laura Alice (deceased), William O., Kate Alma,
Harry O., Hattie L. and Mertie. The mother of these children having
died, Mr. Sheets was married, October 20, 1879, to Caroline Peoples, his
present wife. In 1851, the firm of F. Sheets & Bro. was organized at
Mooresville, and has since existed. They do a large mercantile business,
and carry on four extensive farms in Morgan and Hendricks Counties.
Aside from the firm property, F. Sheets owns some half dozen pieces of
town property, among them the finest residence in Mooresville. Heis a
member of the Republican County Central Committee, belongs to the
Mausonic order, and is a member of the Methodist Episcopal Church.
His property has all been acquired by his individual effort and enterprise.

DANIEL SHEETS, a native of Prince William County, Va., and

b younger brother of Frederick Sheets, was born June 18, 1825, and came

with his parents into Morgan County in 1836. He remained with his
parents until he was about twenty-two years of age. His early life was
spent upon the farm, and at the neighborhood schools he acquired a fair
English education. Since 1851, he has been an active partner in the
firm of F. Sheets & Bro. He was one of the organizers, and for two
years Director of the Farmers’ Bank, Mooresville. He is a member of
the Methodist Episcopal Church, and Treasurer of the Mooresville Liodge
of A. F.-& A. M. He is an enterprising bachelor, a good business man,
an upright citizen and a Republican.

REV. HUGH STACKHOUSE, present resident minister of the
Methodist Protestant Church, Mooresville, Ind., was born in Breckinridge
County, Ky., November 9, 1837. His parents, William and Jane (McNab)
Stackhouse, natives of England and of North Carolina respectively,
came to Indiana in the year 1841, settled in Orange County,and there
ended their days. They had eleven children—eight sons and three
daughters—and six of the sons and one of the daughters were older than
the subject of this sketch. Up to eighteen years of age, Hugh Stackhouse
lived upon a farm, and from his father (who was a superior scholar), and
through a pretty regular attendance at the public schools, he received a
good English education. About this time, he began his theological
studies, and in the year 1859 was received into conference at Morristown,
Ind., and two years thereafter regularly ordained Elder of the church.
After being received into conference in 1859, he was at once assigned to
Richland Cireuit, which embraced twelve places for preaching, and held
this charge three years. The year following he occupied the Monroe
Circuit; and on April 29, 1868, he was married at Solsberry, Ind., to
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Nancy Jane, daughter of William and Mary Hannum, of Ohio, and has
had born to him four children—TUrbine, Charles H. (deceased), Arthur
and Cora May. Since entering the ministry, the Rev. Mr. Stackhouse
has been kept constantly on duty, and during the time has held some of
the most important charges in the United States. He is a thorough
theologian, and ranks high among the many eloquent ministers of the
Methodist Protestant Church. In addition to his pastoral duties, he is
the occasional correspondent for several Church periodicals, and holds
the position regularly of Corresponding Elder for the Methodist Recorder.
He has represented his conference in four General Conferences and two
General Conventions; is a Royal Arch Mason, a Republican in politics
and a stanch advocate of the cause of temperance.

ELI J. SUMNER was born in Highland County, Ohio, May 28, 1812.
His parents, Absalom and Priscilla (Jackson) Sumner, were natives of
Surrey County, N. C., and of Welsh and Scotch extraction respectively.
Eli J. Sumner received a respectable common school and academic edu-
cation, and subsequently became a teacher in Union Seminary, in his
native county. In the fall of 1830, he visited Mooresville for the first
time, spent a few weeks in prospecting, and then returned to Highland
County, where, June 13, 1833, he married Anna E. Boxley, daughter of
George Boxley, of Spottsylvania County, Va. May 5, 1834, Mr. Sum-
ner’s wife died. In the fall of the same year, he came on horseback to
Mooresville, and the following winter taught in the Moon Schoolhouse,
near by. January 21, 1836, he was married in Morgan County to Jane
E., daughter of Joshua Carter, and at once settled on a tract of land pre-
sented to him by his father, about six miles west of Mooresville. In the
tall of 1849, he purchased a large flouring and saw mill near the village,
and operated it until the spring of 1853, when he removed to Sharpsville,
Tipton County, and engaged in the manufacturing and shipping of lum-
ber for a few months, and then returned to his farm near Mooresville,
where he remained until 1865 (in the meanwhile carrying on a lumber
trade in the Wabash Valley), when he moved to Wabash. In the spring
of 1868, he moved to Indianapolis, and in the fall of 1869 returned to
Mooresville. By his second wife he became futher of seven children, all
born in Morgan County—Thomas C., William C., Caswell B., James O.,
Anna B., Hannah C. and Nancy E.; of these, the eldest two only are
living. Mr. Sumner has been identified with several religious denomi-
nations, but is now, with his wife, a consistent Methodist. In polities,
he is a Republican, and he has always been an active worker in the cause

|-of temperance.

GEORGE P. THOMPSON, a farmer of Brown Township, was born
in Chatham County, N. C., September 5, 1814, and came to Indiana in
1833. After spending a few months in Morgan County, he returned to
‘his native State, but before the end of 1834 he was back in Morgan

“County, where he has since lived. His life has been spent upon a farm,

and his schooling acquired at the Friends’ School, White Lick. Decem-
ber 18, 1836, he was married in Brown Township to Millie, a daughter
of George A. Schoffner, a native of North Carolina, who came into Mor-
gan County in 1826, and was one of the four men drowned in 1829 while
attempting to cross White Lick Creek in a canoe. Mr. Thompson has

‘had born to him eleven children—Tiouisa (dead), Margaret, Mary A.,

Asbury, Sylvester, Anson, Spencer, Malinda (dead), Sarah, Fremont and

.Samuel. Mr. Thompson’s parents, Samuel and Sarah (Womblej Thomp-
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son, were natives of North Carolina. The Thompsons came originally
from Hugland, and the two old people emigrated into Indiana in 1869
and located in Hamilton County, where the mother died in 1881 at the
age of eighty-four years. The father, however, died in North Carolina,
whence he had returned in 1872, at the age of ninety-five years. Our
subject owns a fine farm of 100 acres, upon which he resides; is a stock-
holder in the M. & M. Gravel Road Company, and was for fifteen years
one of the Directors of said company. His property has been acquired
by the united industry of himself and wife. They are both consistent
members of the Christian Church, and have been for more than a quarter
of a century. :

JAMES 0. THOMPSON is the son of Jonathan H. and Elizabeth E.
(Latta) Thompson, who were born and married in North Ca'rolina. aI}d
there, in the county of Orange, on August 11, 1839, the subject of this
gketch first saw the light of day. The family came to Ind.lana in the
year 1845, and for the next two years lived about four miles west of
Mooresville, when they removed to Tipton County, where a change of
county lines subsequently placed them in Howard County, and here they
lived up to the year 1867. Returning thence to Morgan County, they
lived again two years upon their old homestead, when they removed to
Mooresville, and the firm of J. H. Thompson & Son, dry goods mer-
chants, first became known to the business world. The father, J onathan
H., was a highly respected and enterprising citizen of both the town
and county. He died February 5, 1884, aged sixty-seven years. Prior
to 1869, J. O. Thompson lived upon a farm, and his education was the
best possible to his circumstances and surroundings. December 20,
1866, he was married, in Howard County, Ind., to Gulic E., daughter of
Jonathan Lee, Esq., and by her had born to him five children —William
1., two infants not named, Gulic and Ella, the four last all dying in in-
fancy. The mother of these children having died, our subject was mar-
ried, May 14, 1874, at Irvington, Ind., to Melissa R. Ritter, who has
borne him three children—Ralph R., Harry H., and Clyde C. (deceas_ed
in infancy). Mr. and Mrs. Thompson are members ,Of. the Methodist
Episcopal Church, and he is an Odd Fellow and a Knight of Honor.
Heo was elected Trustee of Brown Township in 1876, and held the office
two terms. As a business man, he is enterprising and successful, and as
a politician, an active Republican. =

JOHN HARBISON THORNBURGH -is the second son of Benjamin
and Susan (Monical) Thornburgh, and was born in Washingtén County,
Ind., November 4, 1821. He was reared upon the farm, and acquired
the rudiments of an English education at the neighborhood schools. At
the age of twenty-two years, he left the parental roof, and for the next
four years taught school during the winter months and farmed during
the summer. He was married, December 24, 1846, in Mooresville, to
Bliza Gray, widow of Dr. Gray (deceased) and daughter of Reason Rea-
gan (also deceased). Their first born, Thomas, died in infancy, and his
daughters are Elizabeth (wife of A. W. Conduitt), Alice L. (widow of
Dr. Wharton), and Susie (wife of O. B. Rooker). At the age of
forty years, our subject gave up farming, and for fifteen years followed
merchandising in Mooresville, and in the spring of 1831 engaged in
general insarance, real estate and money brokerage, which he has since
followed. He has been thrice Trustee of Brown Township, and
Deputy Revenue Collector for Morgan County under Grant’s administra-
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tion. The late panic came nearly bankrupting him financially, but
left his energy and business ability unimpaired. ke is a prominent
member of the Methodist Episcopal Church, a Republican, an advocate
of temperance, and a public speaker of merit and a progressive citizen.

BENJAMIN THORNBURGH (deceased) was born September 25,
1797, in Mercer County, Ky. In 1808, his parents moved to Indiana
Territory, and settled one mile southwest of Salem, on Blue River, in
Washington County. He lived with his father on the farm until his
twentieth year, when he was married to Susan Monical on the 20th day
of February, 1817, by Rev. James Harbison. During the war of 1812,
he joined the Terrilorial army of the frontier under the proclamation of
Gov. Jennings, and helped to build several block-houses for defense,
into which the early settlers fled for protection from the Indians. He
enlisted under Maj. William Hockett, and they sent out pickets who
passed over the country from where Fredericksburg now stands to Liv-
onia and Brownstown. They built a fort near Salem, in which his par-
ents remained about three months before the close of the war. In April,
1822, he moved to Morgan County and settled on the east side of White
Lick, near where Brooklyn now stands. He assisted his father-in-law,
Peter Monical, in building the first permanent dam across White Lick,
at Brooklyn. In about 1825, he entered the land from Congress, which
he cultivated and lived upon until his death, which occurred on the 13th of
November, 1883, at the advanced age of eighty-six. He joined the Meth-
odist Episcopal Church in August, 1816, and was licensed as
an exhorter in 1833, by Eli P. Farmer. He was a firm believer in the
truth of the Bible and in the Christian religion, and tried to follow out
every day, during his long and eventful life, the principles taught in
that great Book. He was among the first to speak ocut against licensed
saloons in Mooresville. Henever had a law suit with any one, but peace
seemed to crown his pathway, and he closed his life in full hope of im-
mortality and eternal life.

BENJAMIN F. TROGDON, farmer and stock dealer of Brown
Township, Morgan County, Ind., second of the twelve children of Joel
J. and Sallie I. (Julian) Trogdon, was born in Randolph County, N. C.,
February 15, 1847. His parents emigrated from Carolina to Missouri,
and from there came to Indiana in 1865, our subject having at that time
been in Morgan County about five years. Benjamin grew to manhood
on a farm, and at the common schools acquired the rudiments of an En-
glish education. On February 9, 1864, he enlisted in Company L,
Twenty-first Regiment, First Indiana Heavy Artillery, and served until
January 10, 1866. August 17 following, having laid aside the accou-
terments of war, he donned those of a true civilian, and forgetting not the
many pretty promises he had made, and remembering the heart that beat
most wildly as two tearful eyes glanced over the dispatches that told of
the booming of the cannon at the siege of Mobile, he led to the altar El-
mira J. Moon, and there took upon himself the obligation which enrolled
him again in the service of his country, and though his commission en-
titles him not to gilt bands and epaulets, he is nevertheless captain of
the host which to the time of sweetest music engendered by happy hearts
goes marching on, making the world better for having lived in it. M.
and Mrs. Trogden are members of the Methodist Episcopal Church.
They have had born to them four children—Ada B. (deceased), Lena
D., Glenney V. and Ida May. Mr. T. is a self-made man, and there is

.
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nothing in his make-up that he need be ashamed of. He belongs to the
I. 0. O. F. and G. A. R.

REV. JOHN ANTHONY WARD was born in Rock Island County,
T1l., December 25, 1839, and is the second son and fourth child born
to Stephen and Adaline (Baxter) Ward, natives respectively of North
Carolina and Ohio, and of English extraction. The family came into
Indiana in 1846 and located in Putnam County, where they resided several
years, coming finally into Morgan County in 1857. John Anthony was
reared upon a farm, and educated at the public schools, two terms of
which he afterward taught. On February 16, 1860, he was married in
Morgan County to Sylvina Farmer, and on August 12, 1862, enrolled
at Indianapolis in Company D, Seventieth Indiana Volunteer Infantry,
and served about three years. He was with this regiment in many
bloody engagements and escaped without injury. At Peach Tree Creek,
Ga., he contracted chronic dysentery, from which he has never fully
recovered. He has six children living—Laura L., Charles G., Luella
Ann, Harry H., John S., Walter R. and Francis Asbury (deceased). He
united with the Methodist Episcopal Church in 1858, and in the fall of
1865 was licensed local preacher, and a year afterward entered the
traveling connection. In 1868, he was ordained Deacon, and in Septem-
ber, 1870, graduated in the theological course of study, and was
regularly ordained Elder at Bloomington, Ind. In the fall of 1866, he
was assigned to Francisco Circuit (Gibson County, Ind.), and has since
devoted his entire time to the service of the Master. The Rev. Mr.
Ward is a forcible and argumentative speaker. He has received into
church membership not less than 1,200 persons. He rook charge of the
Methodist Episcopal congregation at Mooresville in 1881, and is at this
time upon the last year of the maximum limit according to the rules of
the church. He is purely a self-made man; belongs to the Masonic
order, and ignores politics.

WILLIAM FLETCHER WHITE was born in Putnam County, Ind.,
November 1, 1842, and is the second son and fourth child of John and
Cynthia (Ruggles) White, natives of Virginia and Kentucky respectively.
William F. was twenty-eight years of age before he left the parental
roof for the purpose of making a home for himself. The vigorous exer-
cises incident to farm life, and the tutelage of the public schools had
supplied him with both muscle and a fair English education before he
arrived at his majority. In the spring of 1861, he enlisted in the three
monthg’ service as a private in Company H, Tenth Indiana Volunteer
Infantry, and in the summer of 1862, did the sixty-day service in the
Seventy-eighth Indiana. At Uniontown, Ky., the enemy gobbled him
up” and put a temporary ¢ embargo” upon his soldiering. However,
being full of patriotism and ‘‘fight,” and having been exchanged as
prisoner of war, he enlisted October, 1863, in Company F, One Hundred
and Twenty-eighth Indiana Volunteer Infantry; was promoted to a non-
commissioned office, and stayed with them until August 25, 1865. He
fought the enemy at Richmond, Ky., Resaca, Ga., and in the Atlanta
campaign, at Nashville, at Franklin, at Kingston, N. C., and at Kene-
saw Mountain; and when the war was over, returned to his home as sound
as a dollar. From 1866 to 1871, he worked at carriage-making in Green-
castle, and in 1872 canvassed a few months in the picture business. He
came to Mooresville in October of the latter year, and for five years
worked as ‘‘ journeyman’’ at his trade. In 1877, the tirm of White &
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Shanafelt, carriage manufacturers, was organized, and has proved a suc-
cess. Mr. White was married, December 25, 1873, to Ladoskey Jenking
and has had born to him two children—Jessie Pearl and Arthur arl,
Mr. and Mrs. White are members of the Methodist HEpiscopal Church,
and the voting one of the family is a Republican. ’

MICHAEL M. WILSON was born in Guilford County, N. C., on

July _6, 1838, and was twenty years old when he came to Morgan County.
His life has been spent upon the farm, and his learning, consisting of a
fair English education, was not acquired at school. He was married
February 10, 1861, at Mooresville, to Margaret, daughter of Hiram Shaley’
and has had born to him ten children—William M., John B., Mary 0.’
Peter F., Charley O. (deceased), Michael M., Cora (deceased), Thomas
M. (deceased), Robert R. and India P. His parents, Louis and Mary
(Coble) Wi_lson, were natives of North Carolina; came to Indiana in 1865
and have since resided in Morgan County, and at this writing are both
octogenar:mns, They had five children, four sons and one dauchter; the
eldest being the subject of this sketch. Since July, 1883, M. M. Wilson
in addition to his farming and stock growing, has been engaged in the
buying and shipping of grain at Mooresville. He is well fixed E’nancially
every dollar of which has been acquired by his own industry. He bej
longs to the Methodist Episcopal Church; holds official positions in both
Masonic and Odd Fellows societies, and in politice is a Democrat.
WILLIAM HENRY PRESLY WOODWARD is descended from the
English and Welsh. His parents, William and Lavina (Munsee) Wood-
ward, spent their flives in Virginia—the mother, who lived seventeen
years after the death of the father, having died in 1834. They had
three children; the youngest, William H. P., was born in Lee Oohnty
Va., September 30, 1816, and came to Mooresville in the spring of 1835,
having walked all the way. Irom fourteen to eighteen years of age he
learned the tailor’s trade, and followed it for several Veérs after cgm,in.o-
to Mooresville. October 17, 1839, he was married to Keziah Bra;
daughter of John H. Bray, one of the early settlers of Morgan County.,
She bore him five children, two of whom—Sarah and Ella—were living
at he-)r death, December 1, 1858. August 25, 1859, our subject married
Lydia E. Thompson, who has borne him one child—DMattie, wife of W.
A Oompr, of Martinsville, Ind. In 1853, Mr. Woodward accepted a
clerkship with Holman Johnson in the mercantile business, and at the
end of four years, in partnership with D. Fogleman, bought his
employer out, since which time he has continued in the goods busi-
ness, Mr. Fogleman having retired from the firm in 1856. July 3, 1881
his business house was consumed by fire, as was also much of his stock’-
but by the fall of the same year he had rebuilt, and was again in buls;ij
ness at the old stand. He received little schooling. His father was a
school-teacher, but his step-father took no interest in him. Mr. W. is a
prominent member of the Methodist Episcopal Church, and a Republican.
He inherited from his father one old book, and from his orandfather $65.:
What else he has has been acquired by his industry, and though some-
what crippled by the burning of his store and by friends (?), for whom
he unwisely indorsed, he is yet full of life and eunergy, and possessed of
sufficient property to insure ease and tranquillity to his declining years.
HENRY L. WOODWARD is the fourth son of Clark and Ann
(Warren) Woodward, natives of Vermont and Ohio respectively, and
was born in Jefferson County, Ind., October 26, 1840, He accom.p,anied

-
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his parents to Mooresville in the summer of 1861, and here he has since
remained. His father, who died at the age of seventy-two years, was
Postmaster at Mooresville from the year 1861 to 1864-65, and was suc-
ceeded therein by the-subject of this sketch, who held the office for several
years, carrying on the boot and shoe business at the same time. In 1873,
he formed a partnership with Reuben Harris in the grocery business.
Tn 1875, Mr. Harris sold out to James Hinson, and the business was con-
tinued under the firm name of Woodward & Hinson until November,
1879, since which time Mr. Woodward has been alone. In February,
1873, he was married in Mooresville to Artie, daughter of William Rose,
of Ohio, and has had born to him four children—Luther, Walter,
Charles and Sadie. From about the year 1868 to 1880, excepting prob-
ably one year of the time, Mr. Woodward held the office of Clerk of the
town of Mooresville. He is a member of the Methodist Episcopal
Church, a Republican, a good citizen, an honorable merchant, and does
the leading grocery business of Mooresville.

JACKSON TOWNSHIP AND MORGANTOWN.

HUGH ADAMS, pioneer farmer and stock-raiser, was born April 11,
1808, in Henry County, Ky., and is the eleventh of the fourteen children
of David and Polly (Kephart) Adams, the former a native of Ireland, the
latter of Germany, and respectively of Irish and Geerman descent. Dayvid
Adams came to this county about 1830, remained awhile and returned to
Kentucky, then came back, and here finished his course of life. Hugh
Adams was brought up to farming, and located in this township in 1832,
which has since been his residence, he living now upon his original entry
of 120 acres, to which he hasadded 180, making a large farm, well improved
and stocked. When he was eighteen yearsold, he became an apprentice
to the blacksmithing trade, which he set up in Morgantown and continued
five years. He afterward engaged in farming, working alternately on the
land and in his shop; but after 1869, he devoted himself entirely to his
farm and stock-raising. Mr. Adams has been twice married—first, Janu-

ary 8, 1829, with Miss Ruth Paton, who bore ten children—Charity, David,’

Mary J., Elizabeth, Christina, Ruth (deceased), C. H., Amy, Sarah (de-
ceased), and an infant deceased. His second marriage was with Mrs.
Eunice Kephart, August 26, 1875. Mr. Adams is a Democrat, and gave
his first vote for Gen. Jackson. His career has been honorable and his
life a useful one. He and wife are members of the Baptist Church.
JACOB ADAMS, farmer and stock-raiser, was born in this township
July 24, 1829, and is the eldest of the six children of Henry and Amy
(Kephart) Adams, both natives of Kentucky, and of Irish and German
descent respectively, who came to and settled in this vicinity in 1828.
Jacob attended school some time during the winters,and worked on the farm
in other seasons until he was twenty-five years of age, when he began the
effort of taking care of himself, as a help to which he received 100 acres
of rich land as a parental reward. April 13, 1854, he wedded Miss Mary
Lake, a native of Virginia, which marriage gave being to six children—
George A., Rebecca A. (deceased), Henry A., John J. C, Hendricks V.
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Cramer. Fred Gardner and their families and others. Late in the thirties
and early inthe forties, the class met at the house of Mr. Gardner for wor.
ship. Ministers of the Presbyterian, Christian, Baptist and other de-
nominations appeared and preached to motley assemblages of citizens in
the court house and the schoolhouse. The second permanent class organ-
ized in the town was that of the Cumberland Presbyterian. It was fully
organized in 1841, by Rev. Elam McCord, with the following member-
ship: Isaac D. and Thurzea Sheppard, John Taggart and wife, William
Morgan and wife, James Maxwell and wife, Robert Hamilton, Grand-
mother Bothwell, Polly Ray, Mrs. John Cox, Mrs. Anna Williams, Mrs.
Franky Wilson. It was organized in the court house. Soon after this,
Mr. Sheppard circulated a subscription list to raise means to build a
church. He soon had about $600 subscribed. The few Methodists and
Christians in the town about this time discovered what Mr. Sheppard had
accomplished, whereupon members of those denominations, not to be out-
done, also circulated subscription lists, but were met with the objection
that it was out of the question to try to build three churches in the town
at that time, and the attempts by these denominations were abandoned
for the time. The Presbyterians were so active that their church, a small
brick structure yet standing in the town, was constructed by James Craw-
ford the following year, 1842. The total cost was about $1,500. Addi-
tions later cost $500. Rev. McCord served the class for seven consecu-
tive years—from 1840, when he first visited the town, to 1848. James
Ray, William Orner, Samuel Downing, Benjamin Sweet, carpenters,
worked out their subscriptions on the building. This old church was
used until two years ago, when the present fine brick structure was erected
by the same class at a cost of over $6,000. The class has been prosper-
ous since the start, and has had a Sunday school the greater portion of
the time. W. H. Miller, a most excellent man for the place, and a lead-
er of the church, is the present Superintendent. The missionary work
done by this class is said to be the largest in the conference. This is
largely due to Mr. Miller’s efforts and management.

The Methodists, as has been stated, had an organization at the coun-
ty seat as early as 1827. The Grays, Crawfords and Warrens belonged
later. The church was not built until about 1848-49. It cost about
$1,000. Among the members at this time were Jacob and Catharine
Harryman, Charity Gardner, Mr. McCormack’s family, A. D. Rose,
Susan Rose, Thomas Downing, Nancy Downing, William Downing, E.
T. Harryman, John Edwards, Elizabeth Barrickman, Hester Barrick-
man, Mathew Whetstine and wife, Mr. Elliott, Martha Orner, W. W.
Wilson, and those mentioned above, and others to the number of about
forty. The frame church was used until 1878, when the new brick struct-
ure was built at a cost of nearly $17,000. Among the ministers have
been Tinsley. Williams, Dorsey, Clifford, Powell, Dane, Wharton, Lath-
rop, Smith, Sutton, McCan, Culmer, Grim, Asbury, Thompson, Chap-
man, Hayes, Binkley, Talbot, Brant, McGinnis, and the present minister,
J. H. Ketcham. The church has a memberghip of about 300, and has
had a prosperous Sunday school for many years.

The Christian class was organized early in the forties, and a church
was built about 1846. Among the members were P. M. Parks, Perry
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i, Betja Sims, William Ma-
hip, Benjamin Sweet, James Jackslon_, John \
%Lm.l]lf)%nil;gtings,‘].]oel Wilson, W. H. Craig, Samuel Tucker,‘ Tlhodrpas
']He’ss Allen Hess, Jackson Warner, W. J. Sparks and others, including
the fi:Lmilies of the above. The class has been one of the most prosperous
at the county seat. ~The same building, to Wlﬁmli many 1mp_r0\ée§1tex;tréi
dded, is yet in use. A Sunday school was organized
ha:le Bz(;'n aild %asleﬁdured until the present with a large increase in t}ﬁe
Iex?egbersliip. The Tuckers have been prominent in the church since the
A i insvi ly as 1850. A.B.
Baptists organized at Martinsville as early as .
AlsiThihe aﬁ)rilsks, angd others were members. The brick churph was bl.lllt
bouI;,1857 but for some reason was not finished. The ]ee.xdmg Ba};}tlstls
f;emoved from the town, and the building was transformed into a scdog -
house, being thus used until after the last war, when it was purchaseG'n'y
the Catholics for $700, and has since been used by them. FatherB lGllg
was the first priest. Among the members gvho 1have b(ildongedv‘:rmreds ; Pla';
i i Mrs. Singleton, 8. oods,
lig, George Frisz, Mrs. Magee, : g L el
i i d family, Mrs. Lockhart, Mrs.
King and family, Peter Ml!le'r an ) 1 S
ille, Peter Rooney, Mrs. Gillig, George Estling, Charles s
Vfil:;ts gisge Fathgr Gillig have been Father Snell, Father Eljc.ene:hs,
Pf‘ather Victor and Father Stanislaus, the present priest, who visits the
clags once a month.
POPULATION. i
amili ingville. n ;
1828, there were about ten families at Mart}nsv1 )
the {)l(l)pulation was about 175 ; in 1840, about 400 ; in 1850, ab:—;)'ut 5(?5_3,
in 1860, about 700 ; in 1870, about 1,350 ; in 1880, about 1,948; andin

1883, about 2,300.

BROWN TOWNSHIP AND MOORESVILLE.

THE PIONEERS.

many interesting historical items connected with Moores-
THVI;]HI:E:; evicinify. The segttlement there, after it had begun, 1:Va‘;st Eo
rﬁpid and the settlers were so intelligent, moral and t}}l’rlfty, 5; an fo(:-
northern part of the county was not surpassed by any (')tde'léﬁ polrt lt% o
enterprise and general advancement and excellence. It is 1Tcu " g L
with any certainty the name of the ﬁr;s:tf settl;rnm s]i‘:gavr;epgzsnsars,rp_
in about the same time. carefully ; ' >
?i(;ﬁ:lt}fziewas no permanent settler until 1819, at vyhlch I?ne al\,}llzg
dozen or more arrived. The first man was probably either 5 11';1ml e
thews, Benjamin Cuthbert, Cfl‘larifs Rey:old;,tihgﬁv?sa;e} Ora;rgt:z] o
low or William Ballard, all of whom entere nt
i in 1819. It is thought that Mr. Ballar.'d was the first, as
Ei)s:gggzetgern on the old “Wl;getzel Trace " early in 1819. A%Im(]);lg Othﬁlisi
who came during the next three or four years were John H. ?Iy:ile
Hadley, Harris Bray, Asa Bales, William MecPherson, James Hadley,
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Barclay Burris, Edward Bray, R. G. Burris, John D. Carter, then a boy,
Joel Dixon, Thomas Ballard, Richard Day, Nathaniel Carter, Charles
Vertrees, Joshua Carter, Levi Plummer, William Rooker, Samuel
Jones, William Gregory, I. W. Rooker, Ira Mendenhall, William Reason,
Henry McCracken, William Bales, Benjamin White, William McCracken,
Benjamin Thornburg, John Wilson, Thomas McNeff, William MecNeff,
William Matlock, Samuel Barlow, Joseph Moon, Eli Harvey, Samuel
Moore and many others. ~ The poll-tax payers in 1842 were Cary Bea-
son, Edward Brady, William Brady, Caleb Beason, Harris Bray, John
B. Burt, John Blanton, R. G. Burris, Smith Boyd, W. M. Black, Bar-
clay Burris, Martin Beason, John Caveness, Alexander Conduitt, John
Carter, J. H. Combs, Joshua Cox, J. L. Cox, John D. Carter, Perry
Carpenter, Gabriel Coble, Daniel Cox, Nathaniel Carter, William Day,
Aiken Daiken, Daniel Day, Thomas Dunegan, Nathan Dixon, Riley
Dixon, John Day, Samuel Edmundson, Samuel Evans, John E. Fultz,
Isaac Ferrand (a cooper), William Fogleman, William Fields, Dr. A. V.
Gray, Daniel Greeson, M. T. Hadley, Eli Harvey, Simon Hadley, Will-
iam Hadley, Dr. John Hiner, Job Hadley, David Harvey, Robert Har-
vey, W. B. Harrold, Reuben Harris, Noah Housand, Joseph Hiatt,
William Hardridge, John Hardrick, Jabez Hunt, Soloman Hunt, William
Hinson, Thomas Herrold, T. E. Johnson, Hezekiah Jessup, John John-
son, P. P. Johnson (a tailor), James Johnson, George Kimbro, J. R.
Kerr (a weaver), J. S. Kelley, Obed King, James Lindley, Aaron Lloyd,
William Leathers, Joel Landrum, Alfred Moore, Samuel Moore, G. D.
May, Hiram Matthews, John Matthews, John B. Moon, William Me-
Cracken, Henry MecCracken, Riley McCrary, William McPherson,
Thomas McNeff, Ricks Newby, Robert Newby, M. L. Orell, James Pad-
dock, John J. Pfoff, John Pope, Dixon Pennington, R. E. Preston (a school-
teacher), Michael Rusee, Jesse S. Rooker, Isaac Reed, Thomas Rariden,
James Richardson, Allen Robertson, T. H. Rooker, J. W. Richards,
Jacob Shanafelt, Pleasant Sumner, Henry Shanafelt, J. E. Starr, S. V.
Scott, B. D. Scott, John W. Thompson, Benjamin Thornburg, William
Towell, I. W. Rooker, George Rosier, Reuben Rariden and Eli Vestal.
This list is given to preserve the names of as many old settlers as possible.

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AND INCIDENTS.

White Lick Creek was the attraction in early years. The land bor-
dering it was nicely rolling, and was largely alluvial, and almost inexhaust-
ible in fertility. Log cabins arose in every direction along its banks, and
in a very short period waving seas of wheat and other grain could be seen.
Richard Day built a small corn cracker on the creek as early as 1822.
A small dam was built across the stream, and a short race conveyed water
to the old “ flutter wheel,” which propelled a small pair of buhrs made of
sand stone. The flour that was made at this mill invariably contained
sand from the old stones. The settlers were accordingly full of sand in
more respects than one. Their teeth were always sharp and their appe-
tites good, both being whetted, no doubt, on the sand. It was a cheap
grindstone. People were not as fastidious then as regards what they ate
as they are now. Now we have this patent fandangled process that
turns out flour so fine that you cannot see it with a microscope. Mr.

—
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Moon erected his saw mill on the Bast Fork in 1823. It was a rude
affair, but furnished considerable native lun'lbqr for a few years. Mr.
Moore says that when he reached the township in 1828, wolves, bears and
numerous herds of deer were almost every-day s1_ghts v.vhe?e Mooresville
now stands. John H. Bray started the ﬁ'rst fulling mill in the' central
part of Indiana. Tt was located a short distance west of Mooresville, and
commenced operation a year or two b_efore 1830. It was a rude aﬂ'al(xi,
but it served the purposes of the neighborhood. He did not even carh.
The settlers were obliged to do that themselves by hand. They bought
their cards of Samuel Moore, who purchased them in the Hast with his
goods. Mr. Moore also brought in huge bales of cotton, which were pur-
chased and transformed into cloth by hundreds of wives for miles around. %
calico dress at 371 cents per yard (only four yards), was then regar@eh
as the most stylish costume in the woods. Mrs. Thornburg quught with
her her silk wedding dress, but folks Wguld have cal'led_ her * stuck uph
if she had dared to wear it. She used it to make winding sheets for the
children that died in the neighborhood. Soon after the Thornburgs
reached the township their horses were stolen, and while the men wc?rﬁ
gone for a week or more in pursuit, Mrs. Thornburg was left alone wit
three or four small children. She worked nearly all the time they were
gone, burning brush and logs, and getting ready for the coming crop. She
was the daughter of Rev. Peter Monical, a Methodist minister of more
than ordinary ability and piety. The Thornburgs have since been a.mo%g
the most enterprising and respected citizens of the county. John d.
Bray was a large man, and wielded great influence wherever he moved.
During the winter of 1821-22, he is said to have killed twenty-eight deer
without going hunting. That shows how numerous those animals were.
Their hides were worth about $1, and often their ﬂc_ash was worth little
more than nothing. Coons were numerous and their hides were worth
about a drink of whisky. It is told on the venerable Samuel Moore, that,
on one occasion, a coon skin was traded him.for a drink .of whisky. He
threw the skin up in the loft and resumed his place behind the counter.
Some thirsty fellow took it down unnoticed by Mr. Moore, and tradgd it
to him a second time for a drink. The crowd a_ssembled caught tl‘le idea,
and the cheat was repeated again and again until Mr. Moore imagined he
had a loft full of fine skins. It is quite likely that the fellow who told
this story had been reading the life of David Crockett, and had borrowed
the tale to tell at Mr. Moore’s expense. Mr. Moore bought and traded
for coon skins, however, but he recollects nothing about finding his loft
full of emptiness. The tale is a myth. How foolishly credulous some
persons are, and how many will base fact on fiction !

CONTINUED REMINISCENCES.

The old Moon Saw Mill continued to operate for several years. Har-
ris Bray owned a saw mill about a mile and a half east of town, and_also
conducted a small distillery there for a number of years. When Hn_*am
Matthews came to the township in 1820, a heavy fall of snow had just
fallen. He crossed the tracks of seventeen different bears, all turned

south except one. Benjamin Thornburg camein 1822. He had no corn,
and could get none in the settlement, and went up northeast of Indian-
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apolis to Strawtown, where he obtained a supply which was floated down
White River to the Bluffs, and then hauled out by wagon. He helped
his neighbors roll logs thirty days of the first season, and in return had
his rolled. It was a sight, no doubt, to see thirty or forty men in a big
field where logs and brush lay in every direction. The men would be
divided into companies with Captains, and each party would try to outdo
the others. Four strong, skillful men with handspikes would pick up
and carry an enormous log. It would take about a score of men nowa-
days with half a dozen derricks tolift such alog! You are not required,
reader, to believe that statement unless you so desire. The women would
usually gather to do the cooking, and the times in and around the cabins
were about as lively, and far more attractive than out in the field, for our
mothers were young then, and strong, and had the bright faces, round
forms and light jokes and laughter which we so well remember in our
boyhood days. 'We cannot be too kind to the old grandfathers and grand-
mothers whose feet never tired waiting upon us when we were helpless.

BEAR STORIES.

One day in September, about the year 1829, Nathaniel Carter went
to Richmond, Ind., to attend the Quaker annual meeting. While he was
gone, along during the evening Ira Mendenhall came over to his house to
get help to haul in a large bear that he had just killed. He said that he
had gone out to get his cows, and had discovered the bear, whereupon he
fired and wounded it. He chased it and wounded it with a second shot.
This so disabled the bear that he was enabled to get close enough to fin-
ish it, which he did with a shot through the head. It was a very large
animal, and was hauled to the house with a horse. J. D. Carter, then a
large boy, walked behind to see that the bear kept on its belly so that its
hair would not be injured. The hide was taken off and put to soak.
Mr. Rooker was asked to come over to judge whether the meat would do
to eat. He pronounced it good, and the neighbors were accordingly re-
galed with choice bear steak. They also pronounced it good. One day
J. D. Carter was digging ginseng root near the woods. Upon looking
up suddenly, he was astonished to see a large bear on a limb not many
rods distant. He was considerably scared, and ran to the house to get his
father. Mr. Carter, Sr., hurried out with his gun, and brought Mr.
Bruin down at the first fire. The animal weighed about 300 pounds.

A SNAKE STORY.

In April, 1828, the rattlesnakes were very numerous where Richard
Day lived, near the toll gate east of Mooresville. There was a den of
them in the big spring there. The Day boys and Carter boys secured
several tall sycamore gums and placed them by the springs, and then by
watching with long poles succeeded in throwing thirty-six of the venomous
reptiles into the gums, whence they could not get out. On Sunday, sev-
eral neighbors gathered to see the snakes. Blood was taken from the arm
of some man present, and held in a cup, while the snakes were maddened
with a stick, and permitted to strike several times into a small piece of
cloth, and then the cloth thus poisoned was dipped in the blood. Ac-
cording to J. D. Carter, who witnessed the experiments, the blood ¢boiled

<
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and boiled.” After the blood had been thoroughly poisoned, the cele-

brated rattlesnake root was crushed up and placed in the cup, whereupon
the boiling instantly ceased. This is a snake story.

SAMUEL MOORE.

: 2l e : ¢

is well-known man who is yet living in Mooresville, at the age o
eigh'lt‘;l-llgoieyears, with recollection not a whit impaired by the raygge: ((;f‘
time, came to Brown Township in 1823. He had been a drem elz ‘
Sa]e;n, Ind., for a short time previously, and had there forme1 abpar }rll_erh
ship with Mr. Newby, of the firm of Booth & Newby, of Paola, by w 120
the latter was to furnish $1,500 for three years, and Mr. Moore vlvas 2
farnish $500 and his services for three years, to conduct a genera )t]ien
cantile business, at some good point in the New Purchase thai&1 wfas g
rapidly settling up. Mr. Moore came with h1§ $2,000 wort, 01 g({)o 8,
and placed the same in a blacksmith shop, which had prevxouls;i de;en
built and operated by a smith, named Charles Vertrees on theho d Indian
Trace, but which was then vacant. That amount of 'goods3’t7 1\en w:s zr;
bulk, only about one-third as large as at present. Calicoes, 4L cen sg .
yard, and other things in proportion, greatly reduced the bul rotr)n.lv(;_ a
Y. would be at present. The goods completely filled the little log bui hmgf
that stood at the foot of the hill, about a quarter of a mﬂfw Smll\z 0
Mooresville, and hence was not in Mooresville at all. _ _Here ri) oor&
lived for three years, boarding with some of the fgmlhes near y,ﬂan
enjoying a lucrative trade for that time and place with the Whltedset ers,
and often with Indians who had furs to dispose of for trinkets ]?ln i\llmmt:l_
nition. At the end of three years, the partnership between Mr. e}\;v ty
and Mr. Moore was at an end, and as th.e latter had‘ cleared enoug h0
furnish him with a satisfactory capital, without the aid of a partﬁgr, e
concluded to settle with Mr. Newby, and continue the busm.essooon lj&:vn
responsibility. The net profits for the three years were $8,0h i eg
the business had been settled, Mr. Moore retur_ned with a fres st;)c "1311
opened the first store in Mooresville proper, which was then a to}fa }VI her—
ness of heavy trees, in a frame building, which was erected by Joshua
and Nathaniel Carter, carpenters, and Samuel Harryman, mason.

MOORESVILLE.

+st house upon the present site of the town was built by Asa
Bal;rshienﬁt{ls; ?all of 1§24. Arl))out the same t‘ime, Charles Wllch, iamuel
Moore, William B. Harrold and Dr. C_ur‘ms G. Hussey built Mouse§.
The latter is now a millionaire of Plttsbm.‘gh, Penn. Mr. loore’s
house was a frame structure, the lumber coming from Mr. Mo'osvsu.saw
mill. It stood where Mr. Woodward’s store now stands. Tl iam
G. Lear, Thomas Harrold, Jacob Combs, Isaap Edwards, Eh_ 1ansey,
William Oline and others, were other early residents of the ll;t elt80;v6n
which grew rapidly. Mr. Moore of course had the first store. 1111 I
Alexander Worth & Co. opened the second store, with a stocB w?lr&
about $4,000. Worth had been intereste.d in the Sfxlem firm of o]gt %
Newby, the senior member of the firm being the father of Senator 1c_)o :
of California. He had formerly been a clock peddler in the Caro inas.
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He afterward moved his business from. Salem to Terra Haute, where he
did a mammoth business and became rich. He is said to be living there
yet.  Mr. Worth was really the agent of this firm, whose goods he was
ntrusted with. W. G. Lear opened the third store in 1826, and Silag
Stapp, the fourth, in the fall of 1827. Pemberton Dickens opened g
liquor shop in 1828. He afterward went to Danville, where he engaged
In the grocery business. He could not write, and was in the habit of
using signs in keeping his book accounts. One day one of his patrons
went to him to make the semi-annual settlement, and found among other
articles that he was charged with a whole cheese. He denied havin
purchased such an article of diet, but there on the day book which Mr.
Dickens proudly exhibited, was the big O, the sign representing the cheese.
The patron still denied it, and after reflecting a moment, stated that he
had bought a grindstone. ‘“Oh yes,” exclaimed Mr. Dickens, * that’s 8o,
I forgot to make the hole.” Whereupon he completed the entry in his
day book thus ©.
In 1830, Worth & Kelley went into partnership in the mercantile
business. Armstead Jackson was the tavern keeper in 1832. A Mr.
Worthington went into partnership with Mr. Moore in about 1834 or
1835. He was related to the latter by marriage. John J. Cox opened a
tavern and grocery about the same time. It may be said here that
Samuel Moore sold goods at Mooresville for forty-four consecutive years.
He was the leading business man of his day in the northern part of the
county. J. 8. Kelley was probably next in business activity. Both
kept excellent stores during the thirties and forties, often having as high
as $15,000 worth of goods, which were purchased in Eastern markets twice
a year. William Yarborough kept a tailor shop in town about 1840.
Along in the forties, Mr. Worth failed in the pork business and was suc-
ceeded by Hadley & Worthington. Among the residents and industries
about 1836-37 were the following: Samuel Moore, J. S. Kelley, Alex-
ander Worth, merchants; Israel Hunt, Gabriel Coble, W. M. Black, J.
M. Leathers, John Cox, Jeremiah Blankenship, Joseph Hiatt, A. Jack-
son, W. C. Cline, Solomon Hunt, Joshua Cox, J. H. Combs (wagon-
maker), W. H. P. Woodward (a_young man just arrived), Fred Lester
(shoe-maker), B. Wood, Joseph Wood, George D. May, B. B. Ball, Isaac
Williams, Thomas Murphy (wagon-maker), Samuel Watts, James Richard-
son, Charles Wilcox, George Crayton, Solomon Dunegan and his three
sons-—Lemuel, Thomas and Frank, all blacksmiths and the father a Bap-
tist preacher. Cox, Blankenship and Jackson were the liquor sellers and
tavern keepers. Mr. Bray’s saw-mill and distillery, east of town, were
running. Richardson and Wilcox made hats from lamb’s wool; Watts was
a tailor. Mr. Woodward commenced the business with him in 1835
and continued the business many years, until his health began to fail him,
when he abandoned the business, as he says, just about the time sewing
machines came into use. A Frenchman named Segart was a tailor also,
Isaac Williams conducted a saddlery and harness shop. J. S. Kelley
erected a pottery a short distance west, and Ball was his potter. They
manufactured many excellent crocks, jars, jugs, etc., some of which may
yet be seen in neighborhood. Several thousand of these useful household
articles were made annually and found a ready sale for many miles
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around. Alexander Worth’s carding mill was another important enter-
prise. At first nothing but carding was done, but later, in obedience to
the demand, spinning and weaving machinery was purchased and za Mr.
Bastian, a practical weaver, was employed. Flannels, jeans and sat-
inets were woven. At this time (late in the thirties) the village had a
population of over 800, and business of all descriptions was very active.

MERCANTILE TRADE, PORK-PACKING, EIC.

Mr. Moore established branch stores at the Bluffs and at Martins-
ville, the business at the latter place being conducted by Mr. Worthing-
ton. He had over $30,000 invested in general merchandise at the threte
places during the forties. His book accounts were enormous, and his
trade equally as extensive. He cleared thousands of dollars. He erected
a big grist mill early in the thirties on White Lick Creek near the town,
and there was not a larger, better or more active grist mill at the time in
the central part of the State. That alone added more than any other
one thing to the rapid development of Mooresville. Large quantities of
flour, corn-meal, wheat and corn were shipped by boat from the mill down
the creek to the river and thence down to Southern markets. He also
engaged extensively in the pork-packing business, employing many ha.nds
in the packing season during the colder months to do the slaughtering.
He owned a big pork house at the Bluff. He sent off as high as five
boat loads of pork and produce in one year. John Scott, Reuben Hen-
derson, Perry Carpenter, Jacob Peyton and others were hls. pilots. H_e
sent a total of nearly thirty boat loads down the river while he was in
the business. e bought nearly 100 horses in 1833, and drove them to
Virginia to market. They were taken to the large sugar plantations on
the island of Cuba. Large numbers of the hogs bought were not
slaughtered at all here, but were driven into Ohio and sold at the blg
markets there. e took off as high as 3,000 hogs at one time in this
manner, separating them for convenience in handling into droves of 600
or 800, and driving the droves a few miles apart. Many men were
needed to take care of them and feed them on the way. The hogs then
were not as they are now. They were older, poorer, and, hence, were
much better travelers. J. S. Kelley also did considerable business in
pork packing and shipping. Mr. Moore conducted a saw mill in con-
nection with his big grist mill.

LATER BUSINESS ENTERPRISES.

Among the business men during the forties were John W. Thompson,
Conduitt & Brother, Samuel Moore, J. S. Kelley, Sheets & Brothers, S.
Hunt, Alfred Moore & Co., Riley Dixon, Hawk & Yarborough, J. W.
Parker, Holman and D. J. Johnson were the leading merchants. Bur-
roughs & Manker, cabinet-makers; S. S. & J. Ellis, sqddles and harnf.ass;
Isaac Williams, same; Black, Wilking & Co., tanning and currying.
Mr. Worth’s woolen factory was burned not far from 1840, but was then
commenced in his old pork-packing building which was fitted up for the
purpose. Here it was that spinning and weaving were done. John
Carter conducted a linseed oil mill in the northern part of town on a
small scale. The machinery was operated by cattle on an inclined plane.
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